

Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport

RESEARCH REPORT ON DISADVANTAGED AREAS IN EDUCATION



DEPARTMENT OF POLICY December 2019



Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport

RESEARCH REPORT ON DISADVANTAGED AREAS IN EDUCATION

DEPARTMENT OF POLICY December 2019

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

This research would not have been possible without the initiative and support from the leaders of the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport, especially His Excellency Dr. Hang Chuon Naron, Minister of Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport.

Special deep thanks to the management and colleagues, who are the team of the Department of Policy, Department of Personnel, Department of Education Management Information System and the Monitoring and Evaluation Department who provided inputs and documents, as well as collected technical assistance data and provide feedback and help to refine the study results since the beginning until the end of the study to get fruitful results.

Special profound thanks to His Excellency Dr. Dy Khamboly, Deputy Director General of the Department of Policy and Planning, and Dr. Bo Chankoulika, Director of the Department of Policy, who has spent all their time physically and mentally to manage and coordinate all obstacles in order to advance this research with good results.

The study could not have been achieved without the cooperation and support in creating the research tool, collection and analysis of data from all colleagues and volunteers of the Department of Policy and stakeholders.

Thanks also to UNICEF for additional funding for this research.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The study focused only on disadvantaged areas in education in Cambodia, on the views and opinions of education stakeholders from the school community with a total of 675 participants, in all 25 Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport, 50 Districts of Education, Youth and Sport, and 100 schools (53 elementary schools and 47 lower secondary schools). The purposes of this study are to prepare a roadmap to identify disadvantaged and remote areas, develop criteria to identify disadvantaged areas as a basis for teacher deployments and other interventions, identify teachers' incentives in disadvantaged areas again and target the effective use of area allowance and explore the possibility of whether to maintain or eliminate disadvantaged and remote areas.

Criteria of disadvantaged areas have been identified through a Prakas of the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport, as well as further instructions to the Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport in regular updates. The number of enities and schools, as well as the number of officials in disadvantaged areas, was determined by the Province of Education, Youth and Sport to the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport agreed by the provincial governor. The criteria to identify disadvantaged areas include:

- Areas with transportation difficulties
- Areas with population density less than 10 persons per square kilometer
- · Areas with permanent flood or natural disaster
- Area with incomplete schools
- Areas with integration or border
- The school employs contract teachers and two-class and two-shift teachers up to 50% (for primary school)
- The school employs unspecialized teachers and additional time up to 30% (for secondary education)
- Others: Schools located far away from districts, areas with no local teachers, market, health centers, areas of islands, waterways, malaria and infectious diseases, insecurity, landmine, and landmine vulnerabilities, water scarcity, mountain, etc.

Based on the findings of the study, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport should focus on the disadvantaged situation of the school directly rather than focusing on only the

areas, because the situation does not reflect the reality and needs of the school. Whereas, teachers who volunteered to work in disadvantaged schools should be highly encouraged for budget allowance, transportation, materials and opportunities to help them stabilize their families. In order to ensure the effectiveness of the implementation of the use of the area allowance, the setting of educational staff utilization criteria, teacher deployment, and teacher motivation in disadvantaged areas; the recommendations from this study propose to the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport with the following mechanisms should be implemented:

- 1. Update the disadvantaged entities and schools (low, medium, high) with a database to accurately record the changes of entities and schools;
- 2. Develop strategies to reduce school support from less disadvantaged entities to help schools or entities with high disadvantage;
- 3. Strengthen the system of school evaluation, disadvantaged entities to meet the criteria and changes in a timely manner;
- 4. Support budget, technique, incentives for teachers who volunteer to teach at extremely disadvantaged schools regularly;
- 5. Strengthen teacher-transfered system and make teacher-recruitment exams based on the actual needs of each school.

Abbreviation List

Abbreviation	Abbreviation	Khmer
ABS	ABS	ការិយាល័យស្ថិតិប្រជាជនអូស្ត្រាលី
NEP	NEP	អង្គការភាពជាដៃគូរអប់រំនៃអង្គការ ក្រៅរដ្ឋាភិបាល
OECD	OECD	អង្គការសម្រាប់សហប្រតិបត្តិការ និងអភិវឌ្ឍសេដ្ឋកិច្ច
អនុរិ.	អនុវិ.	អនុវិទ្យាល័យ
អយក (MoEYS)	អយក (MoEYS)	ក្រស្ងងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Acknowledgment	i
Executive Summary	ii
Abbreviation List	iv
Contents	v
Tables and Graphics	vii
Chapter 1 INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background Information	1
1.2 Reasons of the Study	2
1.3 Objectives of the Study	3
1.4 Research questions	3
1.5 Significance of the Study	3
Chapter 2 LITERATURE REVIEW	5
Chapter 3 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	11
3.4 Data collection, entry and analysis	11
3.5 Sampling and location for study	12
3.6 Design of research tools	12
Chapter 4 FINDINGS	13
4.1 Information on the number of participants	13
4.1.1 Participants	13
4.1.2 percent of the participants by gender	13
4.1.3 Age-group participants	14
4.1.4 Experience in the current role of the participants	15
4.1.5 Participants' educational experiences	15
4.2 Identifying disadvantaged areas	16
4.2.1 Participants familiarizing with disadvantaged areas	16

4.2.2 Criteria of disadvantaged areas	17
4.2.3 Previous evaluation of disadvantaged entities and schools	
4.2.4 Entities and schools located in disadvantaged areas	
4.2.5 Updating disadvantaged entities and schools	20
4.2.6 Perceptions on modifying criteria	
4.2.7 The diadvantaged schools	23
4.3 Recruitment of teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas	
4.3.1 Sources of teacher recruitment	
4.3.2 Deployment of teachers to schools	
4.3.3 Disadvantaged areas in teacher selection	
4.3.4 Statistics of schools in the disadvantaged areas	
4.3.5 Statistics for teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas	
4.4 Incentives in disadvantaged and remote areas	
4.4.1 Perception on area incentives	
4.4.2 Perception of the amount of money on disadvantaged areas	
4.4.3 Direction of use of area allowance	
4.5 Challenges	
4.5.1 Province of Education, Youth and Sport	
4.5.2 Districts of Education, Youth and Sport	
4.5.3 Schools	
4.6 Requests	
4.6.1 Province of Education, Youth and Sport	
4.6.2 District of Education, Youth and Sport	
4.6.3 School principals	
4.6.4 Teachers	53
CHAPTER 5 DISCUSSION	
5.2 Criteria for classification of disadvantaged areas	

5.4 Feasibility of cancellation of remote areas	.57
CHAPTER 6 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	. 59
6.1 Conclusion	. 59
References	.62
Appendix	.64
* Data Entry Form	.68
* Setting variables in SPSS	.69
* Guidelines for updating entities, schools and education staff in disadvantaged areas	.70
* A sub-decree on area allowance for civil servants in education and health	.71
* Prakas on setting entities and schools in disadvantaged areas	.75

Tables and Graphics

Table 1: Types of samples and numbers	12
Table 2: Perception on the criteria of disadvantaged areas	.18
Table 3: Name of schools in the most disadvantages in each province	24
Table 4: Name of schools in the disadvantaged schools in the target districts	28
Table 5: Areas of difficulties in recruiting teachers in PoE.	39
Table 6: Perceptions on allowance for each region	49
Table 7: Perceptions of allowance on the most disadvantaged areas	49

Graph 1: Number of participants by gender and type of participant	.14
Graph 2: Percentage of participants by age group	.14
Graph 3: Experience in the current role of the participants	.15
Graph 4: Participants' experience in Education	.16
Graph 5: Participants familiarizing with disadvantaged areas	.17
Graph 6: Criteria of disadvantaged areas	.17
Graph 7: Criteria assessment on disadvantaged areas	.18

Graph 8: Principal's and teacher's answers to school situations	19
Graph 9: Entities and schools in disadvantaged areas by city and province	19
Graph 10: Updating disadvantaged entities and schools	20
Graph 11: Percentage of respondents on all seven criteria	20
Graph 12: Percentage of schools reporting difficult situations	21
Graph 13: Percentage of the PoEs and DoEs redefined the criteria	21
Graph 14: Percentage of respondents on criteria of disadvantaged areas type1 & 2	22
Graph 15: Respondents want modification of disadvantaged areas	22
Graph 16: Criteria for setting out the adadvantaged areas	23
Graph 17: Sources for teacher selection at PoE and DoE	37
Graph 18: Selecting teachers (director & teacher)	37
Graph 19: Comparison of percentages of respondents about the sources of teacher recruitment.	38
Graph 20: Percentage of respondents on teacher supply	38
Graph 21: Number of schools in the disadvantaged and remote areas employing contract teachers	43
Graph 22: Number of schools in the disadvantaged and remote areas employing contract teachers teaching two classes, two shifts of up to 50% at primary school	44
Graph 23: Number of schools in disadvantaged and remote areas employing unspecialized teachers and overtime of up to 30% at secondary schools	44
Graph 24: Number of Formal teachers in the disadvantaged and remote areas	45
Graph 25: Number of contract teachers in remote disadvantaged and remote areas	46
Graph 26: Number of two-class and two-shift teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas	47
Graph 27: Number of teachers with two-class and three-class levels	48
Graph 28: Percentage of respondents on the direction of area allowance	50
Graph 29: Percentage of respondents in the direction of spending each region's allowance.	50

Chapter 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background Information

The education system in Cambodia was almost completely destroyed during the Khmer Rouge regime, with about 75% of teachers, 96% of university students, and 67% of all primary and secondary students in Cambodia were brutally killed. At the same time, all of the infrastructure has either been completely destroyed or abandoned, while textbooks remained scarce (Luis Benveniste, Jeffery Marshall and M. Caridad Araujo, 2008). Therefore, in order to make education at that time work, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport trained human resources under the slogan, "Those who know more must teach those who know less, those who know less teach those who do not know," regardless of the study levels, in which primary school pupils who have completed grade 3 are also recruited to a one-year training course to become primary school teachers, especially for disadvantaged and remote areas (Naron, 2015). Over the past two decades, under the efforts of the Royal Government of Cambodia and the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport, in collaboration with development partners (DPs), national and international organizations have made significant progress in the education system. Despite the growth and reform of the education system in Cambodia, the shortage of teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas remains one of the most acute challenges. According to a report by the World Bank and NGO Education Partnership (NEP, 2017), the teachers appear to be uneven in the region, with teachers in urban areas outnumbered and lack in disadvantaged and remote areas. The disparity in teacher education in those areas is based on two reasons; first, teachers assigned to remote rural areas often move to urban schools with surplus teachers, and second, law enforcement and regulations in the management of education staff are still loosening (World Bank and NEP, 2017) as cited in (Fata No and Sokcheng Nguon, 2018).

Thus, the immediate need to address this issue is to move teachers from surplus teacher areas to disadvantaged and remote areas where there is a shortage of teachers. (Luis Benveniste et al, 2008). In response to these issues, the Royal Government of Cambodia has also authorized the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport, and the Ministry of Health, in consultation with the Ministry of Public Works and the Ministry of Economy and Finance, as well as relevant institutions, to set clear principles and criteria for identifying diadvantaged and remote areas based on repayment status community and economic reality of the geographical location of each clearly funding to encourage the education officials who work in those areas. In collaboration with the Ministry of Public Works, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport has identified seven provinces: Ratanakiri, Mondulkiri, Stung Treng, Preah Vihear, Oddar Meanchey, Pailin and Koh Kong -which are located in remote areas and identify all entities and schools that are located in these provinces as remote areas. In that sense, the entities and schools located in the provincial capital are considered as remote area type 1 and entities and schools are in rulral areas type 2. Whereas, the entities and schools located in other provinces which are identified as disadvantaged entities and schools shall be located in the following situation:

- Areas with transportation difficulties
- Areas with population density less than 10 persons per square kilometer
- Areas with permanent flood or natural disaster
- Areas with integration or border
- Areas with incomplete schools

In addition, in order to improve the living conditions as well as to encourage teachers in remote and disadvantaged areas, the Royal Government of Cambodia also provides 40,000 riels per month for teachers teaching in disadvataged areas; 50,000 riels for teachers teaching in remote area (provincial town) and 60,000 riels for teachers teaching in rural area1. Then, in 2015, to encourage qualified teachers teaching in disadvantaged and remote areas, the government has once again set out the area allowance by providing 80,000 riels for civil servants working in disadvantaged areas, 100,000 riels in remote area type 1 and 120,000 riels for civil servants working in remote area type 22.

1.2 Reasons of the Study

Disadvantged and remote areas shall be redefined annually through a Prakas by the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport to determine the exact geographical location of the each province in accordance with the request of the Province of Education, Youth and Sport

¹ Sub-decree N0.102 ANKR dated October 3, 2002

² Sub-Decree 37 ANKR dated 18 March 2015

following the request from the provincial governor board from each case. In addition, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport wants to see which areas are in diasadvantages, and which areas are still sufferring to redefine appropriate incentives to attract qualified teachers to teach in those areas; thus, that is why this study is conducted.

1.3 Objectives of the Study

The purposes of this research are to:

1) develop a roadmap to identify the disadvantaged and remote areas;

2) establish criteria to identify disadvantaged areas as basis for teacher deployment and interventions;

3) redefine the incentives for teachers working in disadvantaged areas and redefine the area allowance for the effective use;

4) study the feasibility of whether to maintain or eliminate diadvantaged and remote areas.

1.4 Research questions

In order to meet the objectives of the study above, this research is covered by the following questions:

1) In what conditions are the disadvantaged and remote areas redefined?

2) How much allowance should it be provided to attract qualified teachers to work in disadvantaged and remote areas?

3) Should remote areas be omitted or retained?

1.5 Significance of the Study

The findings may be an important basis for the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport's leaders to make decisions in identifying disadvantaged and remote areas and allocate funding to education officials working in these areas to attract qualified teachers to teach in these areas.

Chapter 2 LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Analysis of concerning researches related to disadvantaged areas in education

2.1.1 Identifying disadvantaged areas in a global context

Disadvataged areas are defined differently by the researchers in different contexts and situations. As stated above, the term disadvantage may be broad and may be perceived in many different ways. The first definition is based on the notion that disadvantages are evaluated based on the physical concentration of the disadvantaged population, which means that those who are in poverty, deprived by the state of what is the basic needed or socially regarded as worthless people, such and such. In general, this refers to the identification of disadvantaged areas based on are population (Baum 2006; Baum et al. 2006 and Reynolds & Wulff 2005).

The second perspective on disadvantaged areas is the connection between the place and its disadvantaged population. This concept is to identify disadvantaged areas based on situational analysis. The areas that are identified as disadvantaged ones are those that make it difficult for people to find employment, access to public services as well as basic needs, and not to have adequate infrastructure or can be the place with adverse environmental conditions, such as environment pollution, etc. Although a method of estimated specific measurement of a place based on the degree of remoteness and disadvantage in accessing public services is rarely used by Australian researchers, such as Dodson and Sipe (2007, 2008) incorporates difficulties, such as the problems of travelling and transportation into some of the new indicators they have calculated.

The third perspective is the study of disadvantaged areas linked to more frequent social issues, such as teenage pregnancy, domestic violence or crime or drug use. In particular, if the above social problems are more frequent, the difficulty level is higher and higher. Such a methodology, as practiced by researchers like Vinson (2007), measures the difficulties and reports of disadvantaged areas using the indicators "social disease" or otherwise known as "social crisis". However, this method still has some drawbacks, which make it impossible to use it precisely in the measurement of living space (Hulse, Pawson, Reynolds, & Herath, 2014).

A research study to address the problem of disadvantaged areas in Australian cities has been conducted with the aim of classifying, mapping, and measuring the 'disadvantaged areas' in Sydney, Melbourne and Brisbane as a value market analysis framework on homes in suburban disadvantaged areas (Hulse, Pawson, Reynolds, & Herath, 2014). The study developed a classification of "disadvantaged areas" in the three cities based on socioeconomic criteria. The "disadvantaged area" is defined as a population-focused, socio-economically difficult area to consider in line with Australian policymakers' concerns.

Also, the method for identifying and classifying "disadvantaged suburb areas" as deprived urban areas of Australia is based on a cluster analysis of indicators from the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) in 2011, compared to 2001 and 2006, is the basis of thinking and distinguishing between areas under three major dimensions: 1) the mobility of the people; 2) phase of family life, and 3) the state of socio-economic trajectory.

The study found that 10% of suburbs were classified as "disadvantaged areas" and classified into four broad categories: 1) young people and high single-parent families; 2) families with both parents, but move out of the country; 3) high mobilization population and many old people; and 4) high exodus and unemployment. At least 30% of disadvantaged suburb areas are still subject to complex criteria out of these four categories. (Hulse, Pawson, Reynolds, & Herath, 2014).

2.1.2 Identifying disadvantaged areas in Cambodia

In consultation with the Ministry of Public Works and the Ministry of Economy and Finance, as well as with relevant ministries, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport has identified some entities and schools as disadvantaged entities and schools based on five criteria: areas with transportation difficulties, areas with a population density of less than 10 people per square kilometer, permanent flooded or natural disaster areas, integration or bordered areas, and areas with incomplete schools3, such and such. Moreover, according to statistics and public education indicators of the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport 2018-2019 also identified disadvantaged schools in five conditions: schools with at least 50% of the rooms without good roof, at least 50% of the rooms without good walls, no clean water supply and no toilets (Public Education Statistics & Indicators, 2018-2019). However, the identifying the disadvantaged

³ Prakas no. 2603, AYK BRK, dated October 1, 2014

and remote areas are to fund and encourage qualified teachers to teach in those areas. The identifying the disadvantaged areas is to ensure that the ministry has sufficient infrastructure and rehabilitation for schools that are in poor conditions and lack access to toilets and clean water.

2.2 The solution of teacher shortage in disadvantaged areas

What policies are being implemented to attract and retain teachers and improve the quality of schools in disadvantaged areas?

2.2.1 Solutions of teacher shortage in disadvantaged areas in the region and the world

Most government systems have used incentives to attract teachers to schools in disadvantaged areas. Most of the incentive plans are focused on remote and rural schools; however, some systems also encourage teachers to hold positions or in schools. Many public school systems use beneficial transfers that allow teachers to move to a preferred location after a period of service in less satisfactory conditions or to provide home and relocation benefits for teachers and home movement for teachers in remote schools. Some systems allow teachers for public holidays in remote schools to visit various centers for business, family or health reasons. Some systems give extra money to teachers in remote areas permanently and provide scholarships to attract qualified teachers to teach in those areas (Rice, Rice, & Richardson, 2017).

According to a new report by the California Institute for Policy Studies, teacher shortages have become even more acute in some states in the United States, and teacher enrollment has fallen dramatically, such as Colorado, one of the states with the biggest problems, especially in rural areas, so the government provided \$300,000 for a program designed to address this problem in the countryside. In order to make it easy for management, 148 of the 178 districts in Colorado are classified as rural.

In addition, the U.S. Institute for Policy Studies reports that many cities, including Washington, Oklahoma and South Dakota, have proposed legislation to provide scholarships and not pay for tutoring services. Hiring retired teachers to teach vocational training and resource support throughout the year is also a founding strategy to tackle this problem. The Colorado Legislature passed a law to allow retired teachers to teach without affecting their pensions (Strauss, 2018). Gambia has also implemented a disadvantaged area policy to attract qualified teachers to teach in the remote and poorest areas, offering an additional budget of 30%, 35% and 40% of their salary, depending on distance from cities to those areas (Todd Pugatch & Elizabeth Schroeder, 2014). As a result, this policy could increase qualified teachers to teach in disadvantaged areas by 10%. The United States also contributes 20% to 50% of total salaries to address teacher shortage in disadvantaged and remote areas (OECD, 2012). Australia and Korea have also used the Teacher Career Framework as a tool to deploy teachers to disadvantaged areas, raise remuneration and prerequisites so that teachers have the opportunity to become a director, deputy director, deputy director or education specialist in schools (MoEYS, 2018).

In Sri Lanka, the government has sought to address the challenges of attracting and retaining teachers in rural schools by assigning new recruits to rural schools for the first time within a limited time by providing housing allowance and opportunities to be promoted, etc. Nigeria also provides supplemental scholarships to teachers teaching in disadvantaged areas about 15 percent of their basic salaries. Pakistan's national education policy also tries different incentives by subsidizing girls at secondary and college level and then contracting them to serve specific institutions from three to five years and offers incentives related to special wages and incentives for working in remote rural institutions. In Papua New Guinea, the government has also created jobs in disadvantaged schools to be more attractive by using incentives through the subsidy system for those working in such schools by providing money of approximately 10% of their basic teacher salaries. The allowance is paid to cover the cost of a teacher's travel and address the hardships they face while living in disadvantaged and remote areas.

Generally, the allowance for teachers who teach in these disadvantaged and remote areas is only a small part of their daily wages, transportation, medical treatment, and expenses for visiting families in their hometown; this cannot attract qualified teachers to teach in the area (Fata No and Socheng Nguon, 2018).

2.2.2 Solutions of teacher shortage in disadvantaged areas in Cambodia

To address the shortage of teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport has started promoting local teacher recruitment as a way to adequately train teachers by choosing to address teacher shortages in rural areas through a

series of training courses by recruiting students at the elementary level in that area for oneyear training to become primary school teacher, such as 3+1, then in 1984-1985 followed by 4+1 training and 5+1 training from 1985-1986 to 1990-19914. This solution has helped the ease of the shortage of teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas, but in general, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport still lacks teachers in almost every province, especially primary schools, such as Siem Reap, Kandal, Kampong Cham and Tbaung Khmum because some teachers are retired, transferred to other ministries and have been deregistered on average of 2,000 per year, of whom 1,500 retired and 200 transferred to other ministries5. To further address this problem, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport (MoEYS) also employs non-teaching staff to teach in highly needed areas and provide continuous incentives for education workers to work in those areas. At the same time, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport also conducts tests, evaluates and proposes a promotion or rank for education staff who are working in disadvantaged areas or those who volunteer working in disadvantaged areas once a year6.

Even though the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport provided accommodation and suggested for promotion or rank for teachers working in the disadvantaged and remote areas, this solution has not been achieved in promoting the number of qualified teachers to teach in the areas of high needs because those allowances are too little, which makes it difficult for teachers to work in areas without support from family and farmland for cultivation, etc (Luis Benveniste, Jeffery Marshall, Lucrecia Santibañez, 2007).

⁴ Report of Teacher Training Department

⁵ Teacher Career Framework 2018

⁶ Human Resource Management Reform Principles for Education 2019

Chapter 3 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 Scope and limitation of the study

Due to time constraints, human resources and funding, the study focused on only 100 primary and lower secondary schools located in disadvantaged and remote areas in the 25 provinces of the Kingdom of Cambodia.

3.2 Types of participants

The research focuses only on disadvantaged areas in education in Cambodia, focusing on the views and opinions of education stakeholders from communities, schools, including leaders of PoEs, DoEs, local authorities, school principals, teachers with in total of 675. The study selected the above sample from 25 provinces in Cambodia. The findings of this research could be used as a basis for a roadmap and redefined disadvantaged and remote areas.

3.3 Research tools

The questionnaire was divided into four categories after interviewing stakeholders from disadvantaged and remote areas, including the head of the (deputy) director of PoEs, (vice) chief of DoEs, school (vice) directors, and teachers. After conducting consultations on equipment from all stakeholders, the research team also collected test data for their reliability of the research instruments.

3.4 Data collection, entry and analysis

The actual data collected from the 675 respondents was coded and then entered into Excel on computers by researchers of the Policy Department. After data entry, the data is cleaned and converted into SPSS. For open format answers, the analysis was done by the researchers to identify new ideas or concepts through these answers.

In the analysis of the closing answers, the data was analyzed with the SPSS program, especially the statistical analysis, which is based on each data type. When analyzing the findings, the researchers noted a discrepancy between the percentages of respondents (in case) and the percentages of the answers. In this study, the analysis of the answers was used especially for questions where the respondents could choose to answer more than one answer.

3.5 Sampling and location for study

After receiving data from the Department of Education Management Information System and the Department of Personnel in mid-2019, the research team collected samples of 100 schools, including 36 primary schools and 36 lower secondary schools in disadvantaged areas and 14 primary schools and 14 lower secondary schools in remote areas. As mentioned above, the research team also stratified the sample of schools in disadvantaged and remote areas using MS. Excel randomly selected samples from both areas, and the research team also calculated the ratio between the number of schools in the disadvantaged and remote areas in the sample. Information on the segregation of schools in disadvantaged and remote areas is provided by figures in Prakas No. 2603 MoEYS BRK by the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport in 2014 and data 2016-2017 of the Department of Education Management Information System.

The four target groups interviewed are: teachers, school principals and representatives from the Province of Education, Youth and Sports, District of Education, Youth, and Sport. After the 100 samples were selected, the teachers were selected with the helps from the school principals. The study included 675 selected samples.

No.	Type of interviewee	Number
01	Director or Deputy Director of Provincial Department of Education, Youth and Sport	25
02	Chief or Vice-Chief of District Office of Education, Youth and Sport	50
03	School director or vice director	100
04	Teacher (5 teachers per school)	500
	Total	675

Table 1: Types of samples and numbers

3.6 Design of research tools

The research tool is designed through the review of theories related to disadvantaged areas, legal documents and consultations with professional departments. The questionnaire was divided into six sections: 1) general information of the participants, 2) identification of disadvantaged areas, 3) recruitment of teachers in the disadvantaged areas, 4) regional incentives, 5) challenges, and 6) suggestions. The questionnaire was mixed in both quantitative and qualitative data.

Chapter 4 FINDINGS

This chapter presents the results of data analysis and interpretation of research results in connection with the objectives and research questions mentioned above. The data collected were analyzed using Microsoft Excel and SPSS to meet the research objectives through analysis of formal questionnaires. The study planned to interview 675 stakeholders, and 618 questionnaires, 92% of the expected scope of the study, were officially used for data analysis. The reasons for the inadequacy of data are due to data collection with the vacation and some schools have fewer teachers. The study also obtained documents relating to a list of organizations and schools in the disadvantaged and remote areas from the Province of Education, Youth and Sport of 92%, and from the District of Education, Youth and Sport of 72% for reference in verifying research data.

4.1 Information on the number of participants

4.1.1 Participants

The study involved a total of 618 stakeholders from the 25 Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport, 50 District Offices of Education, Youth and Sport, 100 scool directors in disadvantaged areas and 443 teachers.

4.1.2 percent of the participants by gender

The study consisted of 31.2% of female respondents and 68.8% of men, divided according to the type of respondents.



Graph 1: Number of participants by gender and type of participant

4.1.3 Age-group participants

The participants in this study were aged between 19 and 59 and the average age was 35, as shown in Graph 2.

Graph 2: Percentage of participants by age group



4.1.4 Experience in the current role of the participants

All of the participants had a current role between 0 and 34 years and an average of 9 years (Graph 3).





Of the total participants, only 35% of participants had more than 10 years of current service experience.

4.1.5 Participants' educational experiences

In general, the participants in this study were education officials with between 1 and 40 years of educational experience with average of 14 years. The following histogram shows the frequency of experiences that participants provided with information in all of their education.

Graph 4: Participants' experience in Education



Over 58% of participants had less than 15 years of educational experience.

4.2 Identifying disadvantaged areas

4.2.1 Participants familiarizing with disadvantaged areas

About 97% of the interviewees were aware of the entity or school located in disadvantaged and remote areas. Only 3% of participants did not know about it. The analysis excluded participants who were unaware of the entity or school located in the disadvantaged and remote areas.



Graph 5: Participants familiarizing with disadvantaged areas

4.2.2 Criteria of disadvantaged areas

The participants were aware of the criteria the entity or school was in the disadvantaged area on the following criteria:





No.	Criteria of entities or schools in disadvantaged areas	% responddent
1	Areas with transpotation difficulties	85%
2	Areas with population density less than 10 people per squaa re kilometer	68%
3	Areas with permanent flood or natural disaster	66%
4	Areas with incomplete schools	57%
5	Areas with integration or border	53%
6	Others	15%

Table 2: Perception on the criteria of disadvantaged areas

4.2.3 Previous evaluation of disadvantaged entities and schools

Out of the five criteria set forth in Prakas No 2603 MoEYS. PRK., the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport's evaluation of entities and schools in the past has been disadvantaged, based on criteria in each region. Approximately 73% of those are familiar with the disadvantaged areas responded that the past assessment with one condition of 12%, two conditions of 12%, three conditions of 19%, four conditions of 14%, and five conditions of 16%, while respondents who did not know clearly about it are 27%.



Graph 7: Criteria assessment on disadvantaged areas

Schools that meet the status of their schools meet the five criteria of schools in disadvantaged areas as determined by the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport as shown in the graph below:



Graph 8: Principal's and teacher's answers to school situations

4.2.4 Entities and schools located in disadvantaged areas

There are 4658 entities and schools located in disadvantaged areas across the country. The 25 Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport provided a list of entities and schools located in the disadvantaged areas, and added that Phnom Penh has the least disadvantaged areas when the province of Tbaung Khmum is the most difficult and Siem Reap comes second.



Graph 9: Entities and schools in disadvantaged areas by city and province

4.2.5 Updating disadvantaged entities and schools

According to letter No. 1277 MoEYS. BL, dated 11 March 2019, advised the Province of Education, Youth and Sport to update school entities and education staff in disadvantaged and remote areas in order to check the status of areas as set out in Prakas No. 2603 \square \square . PRK., dated 1 October 2014 on the setting and schools in remote and disadvantaged areas.

The results show that at the targeted PoEs, DoEs have upgraded 83% of enitties and schools in disadvantaged areas, while 17% of them have not been updated yet.

Graph 10: Updating disadvantaged entities and schools



The criteria added two other points to the five criteria as follows:

Schools with contracted teachers and teachers teaching two classes, two shifts of 50% or more (for primary school)

Schools employ teachers teaching unspecialized subjects and additional time of 30% or more (for secondary education)

This update is made available in addition to new criteria for disadvantaged areas. The following is the percentage of participants who responded to the criteria.

Graph 11: Percentage of respondents on all seven criteria



Also, the principal, teachers in the target schools commented on the school situation as follows:



Graph 12: Percentage of schools reporting difficult situations

The results show that the status of the entities is still difficult at about 95%; on the contrary, only 4% said that its entity is no longer difficult and 1% said it is unknown for the target schools surveyed.

Meanwhile, the targeted PoEs, DoEs accounted for 59% of the redefinition of disadvantaged areas, while the remaining 41% have not done yet.

Graph 13: Percentage of the PoEs and DoEs redefined the criteria



Of these, type 1 accounted for 58.1%, and type 2 represented 41.9%. The above types of disadvantaged areas were categorized according to the percentage of respondents as shown in Graph 14.



Graph 14: Percentage of respondents on criteria of disadvantaged areas type1 & 2

4.2.6 Perceptions on modifying criteria

Fifty-five percent of the participants felt that the disadvantaged and remote area criteria set out in Prakas No. 2603 should be amended, while another 45 percent said it should not.



Graph 15: Respondents want modification of disadvantaged areas

The amendment should identify all seven criteria and have the highest percentage of support for the difficult transportation criteria in the disadvantaged areas (72.1%).



Graph 16: Criteria for setting out the adadvantaged areas

The above results show that the dsadvantagd areas in transportation difficulties remain the highest, followed by low population density and flooding areas. In particular, areas where teachers misrepresent their specialties and overtime are up to 30% are also important criteria. In addition to the seven criteria, there are also additional criteria, such as schools that are located away from the district, areas with no teachers, no local markets, no health centers, islands, transportations with waterways, malaria and infectious diseases, vulnerable areas with landmines and unexploded ordnance, water scarcity, jungle areas, etc.

4.2.7 The diadvantaged schools

The study also identified schools identified by the 25 Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport, and the 50 target districts and municipalities, as the disadvantaged schools in the region. It is also explaining the situation of the difficulties. The following table is a list of the disadvantaged schools in the 25 provinces in Cambodia:

No.	Province/ municipality	School	Address	School difficulties
01	Prey Veng	Phum Thmey Primary School	Koh Sampov, Peamchor district	*Transpotation difficulties by taking boat to school *Travelling from Vietnam to school (for the whole year) *Difficulties in looking for hu- man resources (difficulties in accommodation, no teachers)
02	Kandal	Chroy Snor Primary School	Prekchrey commune, Kohthom district	*Flooding for 8 months *Areas with transpotation diffi- culties and border
03	Kampong Cham	Veal Bam- pong Primary School	Kbobtangoun commune, Stung Strong district	*Transpotation difficulties cross- ing stream in the raining season *Remote village *Lack of teachers, two shifts with only three teachers
04	Kampong Chhnang	Slot Primary School	Slot village, Phlovtout commune, Kampongleng district	*No road for transportation (rav- eling by boat) *Permanent flood *Population density is less than 10 people per sq.km.
5	Kampong Speu	Sreken Prima- ry School	Chor com- mune, Oral district	*School away from Oral district *Transpotation difficulties cross- ing cliff, mud without bridge, road, travelling by buffalo cart, tramway road, *Employing contract teachers
06	Svay Rieng	Prasat Primary School	Sangkat Prasat, Krong Bavet	Bordering with problems of roads
07	Kratie	Konvar Prima- ry School	Srechis com- mune, Sambo district	*No transportation roads *Ethnic area in the mountainous, remote and malaria area

Table 3: Name of schools in the most disadvantages in each province
08	Kampong Thom	All primary schools in Peambang and Phatsandaiy commune	*Peambang commune, Stong district *Phatsandaiy commune, Kampong Svay district	*All schools are floating schools in Tonle Sab lake *Travelling by vehicles, motor, boats with long distance
09	Takeo	Banteay Sloek Primary School	Cheychok commune, Borei Cholsar district	*No transportation roads and school buildings
10	Kep	Hun Sen Koh Som Pri- mary School	Koh Som village, Angkul com- mune, Damnak Changeur district	*People engaged in fishing and rice farming (low living standard) *Most students come to study along the rice field dams *Students absent much during the harvesting season *The entrance is slippery when it rains.
11	Koh Kong	Avlatan Annex School	Chroy Bros village, Chroy Bros com- mune, Koh Kong district	*Travelling inland or in stormy conditions *When sick, no health center (travelling by water to provincial town) *The area has no shipping ser- vice to rent a boat or fast boat of 500,000-600,000 for normal weather, while when the storm is 60,000x10 times and there is also no shipping service.
12	Stung Treng	Tale Primary School	Tale Village, Santepheap commune, Siempang district	*Transportation difficulties and telecommunications services *Indigenous people find it diffi- cult to communicate their tradi- tional and ethinical language *People do not understand the value of education, high dropout rates

13	Pursat	Prekkror Pri- mary School	Prekkror vil- lage, Metoek commune, Bakan district	*Floating school in the Tonle Sab Lake *Buildings made from bamboo *Transportation difficulties con- struction/repairing materials *Difficulties in travelling to control teaching, learning, man- agement *Much payment *Poor telephone service in com- munication
14	Rotanakiri	Vernhoy Pri- mary School	Yatpok com- mune, Vern- sai district	*45km from downtown and 87km from the provincial down- town in the rainy season (cross- ing river, forest and road condi- tions)
15	Battambang	Prasat Ang- deth Primary School	Okrous vil- lage, Serey Me- anchey commune, Sampov Loun district	*Difficult road for traveling and flood area *Population distribution is far apart *Poor living standard of people
16	Pailin	Kohkeo Prima- ry School	Stung Strong commune	*Lack of electricity for kindergar- ten at all levels of ethnical popu- lation
17	Siem Reap	Mothkhla Pri- mary School	Anlong Samrong commune, Chikreng district	*Flooding area (half inland and waterwat)
18	Preahvihear	Snapha'ak Pri- mary School	Snapha'ak vil- lage, Srayang commune, Kulen district	*Transpotation difficulties and natural disaster

19	Otdarme- anchey	Kondam- rei Primary School	Kondamrei village, Sang- kat Samrong, Krong Sam- rong	*The road is 50 kilometers, no water source, no electricity, no communication, no school build- ings, people's living is difficult *Lack of water in dry season, and difficult travelling in rainy season
20	Bateaymean chey	Sralaotrom Primary School	Sralaotrom village, Toul- pongro com- mune, Malai district	*About 30-40km away from the DoE with difficult roads *The school has only two rooms with 5 classes and 94 students *All contract teachers
21	Preah Siha- nouk	Soksan 1990 Primary School	Sangkat Kogrong, Krong Kohrong	*On an island, difficulties in trav- elling, spending a lot of money and time, facing frequent teacher changes *Malaria area
22	Phnom Penh	Prek Prang Lower Second- ary School and Prek Prang Annex School	Sangkat Prek Tasek, Chroy Changva district	*Flooding in raining season, diffi- cult roads *Lack of teachers and difficult teacher deployment
23	Kampot	Chamkar- mon Primary School	Chamkarmon village, Taken commune, Chhuk dis- trict	*The entrance is long and diffi- cult, with no houses *No accommodation for teachers
24	Tbaung Khmum	Brey Primary Schol	Kraveanthom commune, Memot dis- trict	Incomplete schools, lack of teach- ers, lack of school buildings, lack of infrastructure
25	Mondulkiri	Antrongsen Primary School	Pouchrey commune, Pichreada district	 * Transpotation difficulties (through Kratie) *Malaria and integration areas *Low population density

The disadvantaged schools in all 50 district and cities

Table 4: Name of	schools in th	e disadvantaged	schools in the	target districts
Tuble 40 Fullie Of	Senoois in th	unsuu runtugeu	Schools in the	ful set unstitlets

No.	District	School	School Location	School Status
01	Pothireang	Peamspeu Pri- mary School	Peamspeu village, Prekchrey com- mune, Pursat district Prey Veng prov- ince	*Far from district, no roads (travelling in the waterway when heavy rains, crossing many boats on the opposite bank of the Tonle Sap River in Lvea Em district, Kandal provincea)
02	Svay Antor	Krangcham- bok Primary School	Krangchambok village, Peanlean commune, Svay Antor district, Prey Veng province	*Long distance with difficul- ty to travel from the district center *Most of teachers are far from school *Lack of teachers
03	Kohthom	Chroysnor Pri- mary School	Prekchrey com- mune, Kohthom district, Kandal province	*Transpotation difficulties (6-month flooding and 6-month landing) *Natural disaster (wind, thunder storm etc.) *Bordering with Vietnam
04	Sa'ang	Tayor Primary School	Prasat commune, Saang district, Kandal province	*Population density less than 10 people/sq. km *Transportation difficulties (8 months flooding can only travel only 4 months)
05	Sreysanthor	Kampong Phnov Prima- ry School	Romdeng com- mune, Sreysanthor district, Kampong Cham province	Flooding road is difficult to travel in the rainy season, and when dry season, travelling across rice fields, boats.
06	Choeung Prey	Damnakampil Primary School	Damnakampil village, Chnoeung- chey commune, Chhoeung Prey district, Kampong Cham province	*Only one building and too old

07	Samakime- anchey	Andongbreng Primary School	Royas village, Chheanloeung commune, Sa- makimeanchey district, Kampong Chhnange prov- ince	*Transportation difficulties (up and down the mountain) *Lack of teachers (teachers moving out not required by law) *School away from the com- munity, bubble houses which are difficulty to collect stu- dents), lack of water *Too few students, os it is difficult to deploy teachers
08	Toekphos	Taphon Prima- ry School	Tadus village, Kdolsenchey com- mune, Toekphos district, Kampong Chhnang province	Difficult roads, lack of teachers
09	Phnoms- rouch	Kirirom Pri- mary School	Chambok com- mune, Phnoms- rouch district, Kampong Speu province	*Lack of teacher accommoda- tion, lack of school buildings, few students *Away from the district downtown
10	Samrongtong	Peamkhley and Kirisok- hom Primary School	Tumpormeas commune, Sam- rongtong district, Kampong Speu province	School is in Tumpormeas commune bordering with Phnomsrouch and Oral District with difficult roads, transportation difficulties and natural disaster.
11	Chantrea	Toul Angpra- sat Primary School	Prasat village, Sangkat Prasat, Krong Bavit, Svay- rieng province	*Transportation diffulties *Population dentsity is less than 10 people per sq. km ² *Integration or bordering area *Incomplete school *Employing contract teachers

12	Krong Bavith	Kohrussey Pri- mary School	Kohrussey village, Toulspeu com- mune, Chantrea district, Svayrieng province	*Situated on a swamp along the Vietnamese border; the road is difficult during the rainy season. *Lack of teachers *Lack of clean water
13	Chetborei	Treap Primary School	Treap Village, Thmei commune, Chetborei district, Kratie province	*No transportation *Lack of teachers, school buildings, only restrooms with the zinc roof *Ethnics *Away from the central dis- trict (40km)
14	Brasatsambo	Kbalstung Pri- mary School	Svay village, Sdeung commune, Prasat Sambo district, Kampong Thom district	*Transportation difficulties *Away from the central dis- trict (crossing the forest) *Only one formal staff (2 contract teachers) *Population density of less than 10 people per sq.km *Only 3 classes (incomplete school)
15	Brasatbalang	Peam Atit Pri- mary School	Peam Atit village, Sarkram com- mune, Balang district, Kampong Thom province	*Transportation difficulties *Away from the central dis- trict and in a quiet area near the bordering with Sangkum Thmei district of Preah Vi- hear province *Students come to school travelling through the jungle *No human resources (teach- ers from other communes)
16	Kirivong	Preykhmounh Primary School	Som commune, Kirivong district, Takeo province	*Bordering areas with diffi- culties in travelling *Incomplete school *Natural disaster *Lack of teachrs

17	Treang	Preyphdav Pri- mary School	Preyphdav Village, Sambo Commune,	*Bordered by flood area (one
		inary school	Treang District, Takeo Province	village-Prey Vrash), students come to learn in the rainy season by boat
18	Sesan	Talak Primary School	Talork commune, Sesan district, Stugntreng prov- ince	*Transportation difficulties *Lack of teachers
19	Кер	Angkor Phnom Touch Primary School	Kampongtrach village, Sangkat Preythom, Krong Kep, Kep province	*Rula roads *Lack of school and adminis- trative bildings
20	Damnakcha- noeur	Kohsom Pri- mary School	Angkol commune, Damnakchaneur disitrict, Kep prov- ince	*Population density of less than 10 people/sq.km *Vulnerability, illness, wind chill *Transportation difficulties
21	Siembok	Annex Olang village and Okak Primary School	Siembok com- mune, Siembok district, Stungtreng province	*Transportation difficulties (flowing water road) and Low population density *Flooded people's houses bor- dering Prey Lang and Kratie province
22	Ratanakmon- dul	Tradokpong Primary School	Kandalstung village, Andeu- khep commune, Ratanak Mondul distrct, Battam- bang pronvine	*Transportation difficulties crossing stream *Landmine area *No accommondation for teachers *Use many contract teachers *Incomplete school
23	Ponheakrek	Chreab Prima- ry School	Chreab village, Pnealmlu com- mune, Ponheakrek district, Tbaung Khmum province	*Transportation difficulties *Lack of staff, teachers (diffi- culties in selecting teachers) *Low population density (Most of them working in rubber plantation)

24	Tbongkhum	Chamlu Pri- mary School	Chamlu village, Rokarbram com- mune, Tbaung Khmum district, Tbaung Khmum province	*Transportation difficulties *Low population density *Incomplete school *Lack of teachers
25	Kulen	Phnomtel Pri- mary School	Srayang commune, Kulen district, Preah Vihear prov- ince	*Transportation difficulties *Low population density away from downtown *Incomplete school
26	Orang	Doeums- vay Primary School	Sham Village, Mo- norom commune, Orang district, Mondulkiri prov- ince	*Transportation difficulties and telecommunication *Incomplete school *Low number of students and people *Inappropraite food and ac- commodation for teachers *No school buildings
27	Konmom	Meunthang Primary School	Meunthangmuy village, Teun commune, Konmom district, Rotanakiri prov- ince	*School away from village, central district (25km) * Transpotation difficulties in rainy season (crossing villag- ers'field) *Ethnics (Kroeng ethnics are able to speaker Khmer language of about 40%)
28	Borkeo	Palethmey Pri- mary School	n.a	* Transpotation difficulties and far
29	Krakor	Anlongrang Primary School	Kamponglor vil- lage, Kampongpor commune, Krakor district, Pursat province	*Permanent floating school *Away from the central dis- trict *Permanent lack of teachers

30	Pursath	Suy Sem Kam- pongstong Pri- mary School	Chamroeunphal commune (border- ing with Ochrov, Bratil commune, Kravanh district), Krong Pursat, Pur-	*School in the jungle with dirt and difficult roads when it rains; 22 km from the cen- tral district
31	Mondulseima	Annex School K3 (Khnong Phnom 100)	sat province Baklong com- mune, Mondulsei- ma district, Koh Kong province	*School located on a moun- tainside along the Thai-Cam- bodian border, 55 km from the town *Gravel roads, no clean water, no electricity *Isolated people's houses (controlled by soldiers)
32	Salakrav	Phnom Krenh Primary School	Stungstrong com- mune	*Quiet area *Lack of water, electricity *People are often displaced *No accommodation for teachers *Transportation difficulties
33	Tbengme- anchey	Stungtouch Primary School	Porkhoeurn village, Por com- mune, Tbengme- anchey district, Preah Vihear province	*Transportation difficulties (by cow cart and crossing forest) *Population distribution is not collected *Not suitable building (tem- porary school) *No electricity network
34	Kulen	Phnomtel Pri- mary School	Phnomtel village, Srayang commune, Kulen district, Preah Vihear prov- ince	*Difficulties in transporta- tion, away from the down- town *Low population density *Incomplete school
35	Kralanh	Phokkroch Primary School	Sambor commune, Kralanh district, Siem Reap prov- ince	*Transportation difficulties and flooding

36	Pouk	Mechrey Pri- mary School	Keopor commune, Pouk district, Siem Reap province	*Floating school (moving location twice a year to spend much time, energy and mon- ey on moving the building)
37	Samrong	Kondam- rei Primary School	Kondamrei village, Sangkat Samrong, Otdarmeanchey province	*Lack of school building (a current wooden building with 4 rooms, average condi- tion) *Difficult for transportation in rainy season *People with poor living stan- dard and mobilzation *Population density less than 10 people per sq.km
38	Mongkul- borei	Ochoubth- mei Primary School	Soeur commune, Mongkulborei distirct, Banteay Meanchey prov- ince	*Transpotation difficulties, underwater *Population density *Natural disaster *Contract teachers *Lack of formal teachers
39	Sereisophorn	Salakrav Pri- mary School	Salakrav village, Sangkat Tviet, Kro- ng Sereisophorn, Banteaymeanchey province	*School with 6-class level in total of 51/21 *Three teachers (teach two classes) *Transferred teachers not sending there *PoEs not allow to have new post (Sangkat Pongsat, Tviet, Mkak)
40	Chongkal	Bakvek Prima- ry School	Bakvek village, Chongkal com- mune, Otdarme- anchey province	*Transportation difficulties *Population density less than 10 people per sq.km *Natural disaster areas *Mixed class teachers (two- class levels)

41	Preynob	Preksvay Pri- mary School	Tanai commune, Prenob district, Preah Sihanouk province	*Close to Christian School obsorbing students *Difficult entrance making difficult to travel for teachers and students, and insecurity
42	Botomsakor	Krouskra- horm Primary School	Chamlongkor village, Thmorsar commune, Botum- sarkor disitrict, Kohkong province	*Transportation difficulties (muddy) *Shortage of staff (two-shift and mixed class)
43	Kambol	Phleatpim- pealy Primary School	Svay village, Sang- kat Snor, Khan Kambol, Phnom Penh	*Shortage of teachers, school buildings, school gates, water, electricity, library
44	Chroychang- va	Prekrang An- nex School	Sangkat Prektasek, Khan Chroychang- va, Phnom Penh	*Underwater road, flooding and river *Only to teachers *At the Tonlesab waterfront
45	Toekchhou	Dopsralav Pri- mary School	Trapeangpring commune, Toek- chhou district, Kampot province	*Transportation difficulties with 30km away from the district center *Population density less than 10 people per sq.km *Shoratage teachers
46	Kampong- trach	Kohtnot Pri- mary School	Prekkrem com- mune, Kampong- trach district, Kampot province	*Disadvantaged area *Flooding area *Transportation difficulties in rainy season (sticky road when raining) * teacher shortage
47	Ekphnom	Potkantel Pri- mary School	Sretal village, Toschiveang com- mune, Ekphnom district, Battam- bang province	*Transportation difficulties and water way *Floating school *Old building and underwa- ter (only one building) *Teacher shortage

48	Krong Pailin	Korkmous Pri- mary School	Sangkat Toul Lvea, Krong Pailin, Pail- in province	*Transportation difficulties when raining *Insecurity *Without participation from community
49	Stunghav	Chamrangs- neth Primary School	Keophos com- mune, Stunghav district, Phreah Sihanouk province	*Transportation difficulties *Less population density
50	Pichreada	Antrong Senchey Pri- mary School	Pouchrey com- mune, Pichreada district, Mondulki- ri province	*Far from the district center (360km) *To reach school, it must come across Mondulkiri province and stay there one night and travel to Sambo district *Crossing contamination and if water, it needs to wait.

4.3 Recruitment of teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas

4.3.1 Sources of teacher recruitment

Sources of teacher recruitment are selected from various sources, while teachers are usually recruited from the national examination. In case of shortage of teacher, contract teachers may be selected based on the actual neccessity. Schools can also borrow teachers from other schools. Each school may have new teachers, transferring in or out, retirement, giving up working, etc. Based on stakeholder inquiries at the Province of Education, Youth and Sport in the study, the results show that teacher sources are most likely to be selected from the national exam (95%), while teachers of about 76% are contract teachers and borrowed from other schools of about 41%.





The School principal stated that 94% of teachers came from national exams, while 10% were from contract teachers, and 6% were from substitute teachers.





C omparing the responses from PoEs, DoEs and school level on teacher recruitment sources found that the number of teachers entering the national test was greater than 90% in both PoE and school principal responses.



Graph 19: Comparison of percentages of respondents about the sources of teacher recruitment

4.3.2 Deployment of teachers to schools

Seventy-one percent of the respondents said that the deployment of teachers to schools did not meet the school's actual needs, while the other 29% answered that it did meet the needs of the school.

Graph 20: Percentage of respondents on teacher supply



The problem of teacher segregation is not in line with the needs of the schools due to reasons, such as inadequate number of teachers, and meeting the needs of the national teachers is less compared to the actual needs of teachers, transferring out a lot from disad-

vantaged schools to downtown schools, lack of human resources in local exams, creating new schools, difficulties in deploying teachers in accordance with the norms, using contract teachers, 2-shift/replaced teachers, using teachers teaching unspecialized subjects instead of subjects which are lack of teachers, and schools are far and the lack of security making the teachers not want to teach.

4.3.3 Disadvantaged areas in teacher selection

Through the results of the research, it has shown that some areas still face challenges in selecting teachers based on a number of reasons: candidates who apply for local exams are small; some districts are lack of resources or not able to pass teacher recruitment exams, and they are less likely to participate in teacher recruitment of students passing the high school exams; moreover, transportation are difficult to get to remote areas, along the border, new village creation, demining areas, and areas that have just been allocated land to the local people, and there is an imbalance between retired teachers and new teachers recruited.

No.	PoEs	Communes	Reasons
01	Prey Veng	*Preah Sdach district, commune of Preah Sdach, Banteay Chakrei, Reathor *Peamchor district, commune of Banlich Prasat, Neakloeung *Peamchor district (all schools)	
02	Kandal	*Koh Thom district, Prek Chrey commune (Kna- tangyou, Baknam, Chroysnor village), Kampong Kong commune (Lveatong village), Chher Kmao commune (Trapeang Chrey village), Leuk Dek commune (Toul Sleng, Khleang village), Sampov Poun commune (Prek Sbov village). *Leuk Dek district: Khaam Samnor commune (Khaam Samnor Krom village), Prek dach com- mune (Koh Kantheay village) *Lvea Em district: Sambour commune (Prek Char, Banteay Mlu village), Prek Russey commune (Prek Pra village), Baron commune (Khnorkar village), Prek Rai commune *Saang district: Prasat commune (Village 5, Tayor area)	Few candidates applying for the lower secondary school examination

Table 5: Areas of difficulties in recruiting teachers in PoE

03	Kampong Cham	*Stung Trang district: all communes (employing more than 200 contract teachers) Omlu, Dangk- dar, Aksartnot, Tagnoun, Toul Sambo, Toul Preahtrapeang *Chamkar Leu district: Tabrok, Chamkar Andong commune *Batheay district: Chhbar Ampov and Trab com- mune *Kampong Siem district: Srok commune *Kangmeas district: Reaypay commune *Koh Sotin district *Srey Santhor district: Tongtralach, Chibal, Baray commune	
04	Kampong Chhnang	*Cholkiri district *Kampong Leang district	The two districts have limited re- sources, with few teachers passing in the examination.
05	Kampong Speu	*Oral district *Spong district *Phnom Srouch district	
06	Svay Rieng	*Krong Bavet *Chantrea district	*Lack of human resources, limited knowledge *Living condition problems
07	Kratie	*Sambo district: Srechis, Rolous commune *Snoul district: Kranhoung commune *Chet Borei district: Thmei, Changkrang com- mune *Chhlong district: Kampong commune	Lack of human resources
O8	Kampong Thom	*Kampong Svay district: Phat Sanday commune *Stong district: Peangbang district, Preah Damrei commune *Sandan district: Dangkambet, Dangtong, Sochet commune *Sanngtuk district: Boeung Lvea Leu commune *Prasatbanlang district: Sakream commune	There is no human resource for a high school diploma.

09	Takeo	Borey Chulsar district: Kampong Saing, Chey Chok commune	
10	Кер		
11	Koh Kong	*Sre Ambel district: Dang Peng, Chroy Svay, Chi- kal Leu-Krom commune *Botum Sakor district: Tanon, Kandol commune *Kiri Sakor district, Prek Khsach, Phnhi Meas commune *Koh Kong district: Chroy Pros, Koh Kapi, Ta Tay, Trapaing Rong commune *Mondul Seima district: Bak Khong, Toul Korki, Peam Krasom commune *Thmor Bang district: Russey Chrum, Ta Tiril, Bralay, Tum Nob, Thmor Donpov, Chi Phat com- mune	
12	Stung Treng	*Siem Pang district: Santepheap commune *Sesan district: Sdao, Srekor, Thmorkeo, Kbal Romeas, Talat commune *Thalaborivat district, Anlong Chrey commune	Hard to find hu- man resources
13	Pursat	*Bakan district, Meteuk commune *Kravanh district *Kandieng district, Rangtil commune *Krakor district, Kampong Luong commune	On Boeung Tonle Sab River
14	Rotana- kiri	District of Andoung Mean, Borkeo, Konmum, Lumphat, Oda, Taveng, Vernsay	Lack of resources, no local people, transportation difficulties
15	Battam- bang	All disadvantaged areas employing contract teachers	Lack of qualified candidates for teacher recruit- ment
16	Pailin	*Krong Pailin: Sangkat Pailin, Otamao *Sala Krao district: Stueng Kach, Stung Trang, Ou Andong commune	School is too far away
17	Siem Reap	All schools are located in Svay Leu district.	
18	Preah Vihear	*Cham Ksarn district: Yeang commune	

19	Otdar Meanchey	*Trapaing Prasat district: Phaav commune (bor- der) *Anlong Veng district: Lumtong commune (newly created) *Banteay Ampil district, Beng, Ampil commune (human resources) *Chongkal district, Pongror commune, (human resorces) *Krong Samrong, Osmach commune, Sangkat Konkriel (human resources)	*Remote areas along the border *New villages cre- ated, demarcated areas, and lands distributed to the people *Not enough human resources for exams (inqual- ified)
20	Banteay Meanchey	*Ou Chrov district	Less value of edu- cation
21	Preah Sihanouk	*Sangkat Koh Rong	
22	Phnom Penh	*Khan Kambol, Prek Phnov, Posenchey, Dangkor, Chroychangva	Imbalance be- tween retired teachers and new teachers
23	Kampot	*Toekchhu district, Trapeang Phleang, Decho Akphivath and Taken communes *Toekchhu district, Stungkeo commune *Kampongtrach, Boeungsalang Khangtbong com- mune	
24	Tbaung Khmum	*Memot district, Tramung, Tonloung, Cham- kravean, Cham, Chanmoul, Rong, Teak, Korki, Kamporn, Rumchek, Chamtamao communes *Tambe district, Trapeangpring and Chongcheach, Sedaneangtert communes *Kroch Chhmar district, Chhuk and Toulsnol *Tbaung Khmum district, Anchoeum commune, Boeungproul, Kor and Thmor Pich communes	
25	Mon- dulkiri	*Koh Nhek district, Royai commune (Kdol village with 40-50km) *Pichreada district, Anlongsen Chey commune from Kratie	Lack of resources, difficulties in de- ploying teachers

4.3.4 Statistics of schools in the disadvantaged areas

A. Contract teachers

The number of entities and schools employing highest contract teachers for academic year 2018-2019 is Banteay Meanchey (299 schools), while Siem Reap (296 schools) stands as the second place and Tbaung Khmum (255 schools) is the third one; on the other hand, provinces which do not employ contract teachers at the kindergarten and primary education, including Kep, Preah Sihanouk, Kampot and Phnom Penh. In kindergarten, only Prey Veng has the highest number of kindergarten (74 schools) employing contract teachers and Banteay Meanchey has 8 schools, Takeo with 5 schools, and Pailin with 2 schools.





B. Contract teachers and two-shift teachers of up to 50% at primary school

The number of entities and schools employing contract teachers and teachers teaching two classes, two shifts of up to 50% at primary school in academic year 2018-2019 is Battambang standing as the first place, while the second province is Pursat, and the third one is Otdarmeanchey; on the contrary, provinces which do not employ contract teachers and two-class and two-shift teachers, such as Kampong Chhnang, Kampong Speu, Kep and Tbaung Khmum.



Graph 22: Number of schools in the disadvantaged and remote areas employing contract, two class, two shift teachers of up to 50% at primary school

C. Teachers teaching unspecialties and overtime of up to 30% at secondary school

The number of enities and schools employing unspecialized teachers and overtime of up to 30% in the academic year 2018-2019 with three highest ranked provinces: Tbaung Khmum (155), Siem Reap (63) and Banteay Meanchey (47), including five provinces that do not employ the unspecialized teachers and additional time of up to 30%, including Kampong Chhnang, Kampong Speu, Svay Rieng, Pailin and Phnom Penh, while the provinces have only teachers employing unspecialized one or two teachers are Sihanouk, Kratie, Kep and Phnom Penh.





4.3.5 Statistics for teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas

A. Formal Teacher

The provinces with the highest number of teachers in the disadvantaged and remote areas for the academic year 2018-2019 are Siem Reap with the highest number of teachers, with 3232 teachers, followed by Banteay Meanchey (3049) and the third highest one is Battambang (2678), while the province with the lowest number of teachers in the remote areas of the academic year 2018-2019 are Phnom Penh (57) and Sihanoukville of 313 teachers.





B. Contract teachers

Provinces with the largest number of contract teachers working in the disadvantaged and remote areas in the academic year 2018-2019 are Siem Reap with the highest percentage and the second largest province is Kompong Thom and the province has no contract teachers in the disadvantaged and remote areas, including Kandal, Kampong Chhnang, Kep, Preah Sihanouk, Kampot and Phnom Penh.



Graph 25: Number of contract teachers in remote disadvantaged and remote areas

C. Two-classe and two-shift teachers

Provinces employ two-class and two-shift teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas in the academic year 2018-2019 with the highest teachers are Prey Veng, Battambang, Tbaung Khmum, Kampong Cham and Banteay Meanchey; on the contrary, Kampong Chhnang, Kampong Speu, Kep and Mondulkiri do not employ two-class and two-shift teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas.



Graph 26: Number of two-class and two-shift teachers in disadvantaged and remote areas

D. Teacher teaching two and three class levels

The provinces use the highest two-class levels of teachers is Banteay Meanchey, and the second highest province is Ratanakiri, while the third highest three-class level is Ratanakiri. Mondulkiri, Preah Vihear, Koh Kong, and Banteay Meanchey in the disadvantaged and remote areas for the academic year 2018-2019. At the same time, some provinces do not use two-clss level and three-class level teachers, including Kampong Chhnang, Kep and Phnom Penh.



Graph 27: Number of teachers with two-class and three-class levels

4.4 Incentives in disadvantaged and remote areas

Education officials, who are working in the disadvantaged and remote areas, are offered monthly incentives (area allowance) with three levels:

- Disadvantaged area receives KHR80,000 per month
- Remote area type 1 receives KHR100,000 per month
- Remote area type 2 receives KHR120,000 per month.

4.4.1 Perception on area incentives

From the points of view, stakeholders who were interviewed about the amount of incentives provided to education officials working in disadvantaged and remote entities and schools should receive the following monthly average allowance:

- Average allowance for disadvantaged areas is KHR144,249 per month
- Average allowance for disadvantaged areas type 1 is KHR168,592 per month

• Average allowance for disadvantaged areas is KHR203,025 per month.

Type of Areas	No. of Re- spondents	Minimum	Maximum	Average	Standard deviation
Allowance for disadvan- taged area	563	80,000R	100,000R	144,249R	125,406R
Allowance for disadvan- taged area type 1	412	80,000R	120,000R	168,592R	120,590R
Allowance for disadvan- taged area type 2	443	100,000R	140,000R	203,025R	138,896R

Table 6: Perceptions on allowance for each region

4.4.2 Perception of the amount of money on disadvantaged areas

The Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport, and the Districts of Education, Youth and Sport, see the allowance for education officers working in enitties and schools in the disadvantaged and remote areas should receive an average of 345,556 Riel per month in line with the principle of encouraging education officials to serve in disadvantaged areas; in contrast, the gap in the area allowance is too big from the mean (standard deviation = \$ 425,229.00R), which range from 80,000R to 2,000,000R.

Table 7: Perceptions of allowance on the most disadvantaged areas

	No. of Re- spondents	Minimum	Maximum	Average	Standard deviation
Allowance for the disadvantaged areas	72	80,000R	2,000,000R	345,556R	425,229R

Median and Mode of the allowance for the disadvantaged areas is 2,000,000Riel per month as the basis for considering the size of the allowance for civil servants working in entities and schools that are not very disadvantaged in each region, similar to the amount of incentives requested by the stakeholder of this study for remote area type 2 (203,025R).

4.4.3 Direction of use of area allowance

The monthly allowance for education officers who teach in disadvantaged areas has helped them to improve the living expenses of their families for rent, travel (teachers from distance and province), catering and other issues that benefit for their requirements. Among them, the highest expenditure on travel and the second highest expenditure is to improve their family living conditions.



Graph 28: Percentage of respondents on the direction of area allowance

P ercentage of each respondent on area allowance for education spending by region officials, most of them stressed on travel costs (over 80%), while food about 65% and improving family life of 64.3 % and for house rent from distance district and province of 30%.





4.5 Challenges

The study gathered challenges related to the identification and criteria of disadvantaged and remote areas, including 25 target PoEs and 50 DoEs. In addition, the challenges of the school are gathered for analyzing the factors that the school principals and teachers are facing.

4.5.1 Province of Education, Youth and Sport

At the Province of Education, Youth and Sport, the challenges of identifying the disadvantaged areas include (1) transportation difficulties (long distance for teachers, unsafe roads, mountain schools), (2) shortage of teachers (unspecialized teachers and teachers' movement), (3) difficulties in assessing disadvataged areas (some schools are small, which are not in the conditions as the disadvantaged areas, but difficult situation in employing staff (few staff with many classes and students), (4) no specific data on population density, (5) lack of water or electricity supply, (6) no accommodation for teachers, (7) lack of school buildings, (8) teachers staying away from school (different province), (9) incomplete school, (10) migration, (11) fears of conflict after the disconnection of area allowance, (12) mobilized people, (13) indigenous languages (multi-lingual).

4.5.2 Districts of Education, Youth and Sport

At the District of Education, Youth and Sport, the challenges of identifying the disadvantaged areas include (1) transportation difficulties (long distance teachers), (2) shortage of teachers (wrong specialized teachers), (3) difficulty in identifying disadvantaged areas (for example, schools are not in diadvantaged communes, but they are difficult because schools in disadvantaged areas; however, they are identified that they are in good conditions), so the DoEs raised that they have one criteria, while the PoEs said they have two criteria, lack of documentation from the top management, (4) other issues, such as low subsidy, difficulty in collecting students to school, dropout of school to work, wastage of war, border, low-density, (5) natural disasters (floods, storms, fires), (6) lack of drinking water or electricity, (7) poor living conditions (lack of health centers) and migration, (8) no accommodations for te achers, (9) teachers from far away (differnt district/province), and (10) lack of school buildings (not enough rooms, no administrative office, old buildings, leaking-roof buildings).

4.5.3 Schools

In the target schools studied, school principals and teachers also highlighted some of the challenges. The school principals identified the lack of teachers (unspecialized teachers, movement of teachers), transportation difficulties (long-distance teachers, unsafe roads), lack of school buildings (building with no sufficient rooms, no administrative room, old buildings, leaking-roof buildings), poor living conditions (lack of health centers), migration, lack of access to water or clean water, electricity, natural disasters (under-water, storm, wildfire), no accommodations for teachers, no library, lack of supplies (textbooks, ...), lack of toilet facilities and other problems, such as gangs, insecurity, low density, boundaries, teachers not receiving area allowance to make them unhappy, parents not encouraging children to school, late enrollment, high drop-out, limited community involvement, limited administration, and limited school budget process.

Similarly, teachers raised the lack of teachers (unspecialized teaching...), transportation difficulties (slipping roads, boat taking, difficulty in traveling, away from the community, teachers living away from school, lack of school buildings (building with lack of rooms, no administrative office, old buildings, leaking-roof buildings), no libraries, lack of materials (textbooks, ...), lack of water or water system, electricity, poor living conditions, disease, migration, lack or no accommodations for teachers, natural disasters (under water, storms), lack of toilets, few people living along the border and other problems (parents do not push their children to school, absent students, dropout, school with no fence, drug use, bully people destroying school, safety issues for teachers and female students, and less participation from community).

4.6 Requests

4.6.1 Province of Education, Youth and Sport

In order to improve the identification of disadvantaged areas as well as the criteria, the Province of Education, Youth and Sport has requested to increase allowance (based on time and distance), revise criteria according to local conditions and disseminate broadly (mountain and lack of teacher school), build accommodations for teachers and students living away from school, provide additional teachers based on school requirements, (select teachers in local if possible), build more school buildings (no administrative office, old

school building, lack of rooms, keep providing area allowance, direct school inspection, and separate the disadvantaged area type 1 and type 2 by each district and help solve transportation issues.

4.6.2 District of Education, Youth and Sport

The Districts of Education, Youth and Sport have requested to supplement (and provide timely) keep the same amount of money (keep providing area allowance), adjust the criteria for local conditions (distance roads), disseminate comprehensively, provide more teachers as required by the school, deploy teachers to disadvantaged areas or allocate teachers prior to exams by commune much clearer (select teachers in the local if possible), build accommondations for teachers and students from the distance, build more school buildings, help solve the transportation problems, provide scholarships to poor students, include new schools as the disadvantaged schools, fund for school researches, and build additional libraries.

4.6.3 School principals

In addition, the school principals have also asked to provide supplemental allowance, provide additional teachers to the needs of school, maintain the same area (keep providing area allowance), build additional school buildings, build accommendations for teachers (from distance), build libraries, and provide teaching and learning materials (textbooks), solve transportation problems, build toilets, water shortage, electricity and other issues, including building school fence, conduct direct school control, help guide regional school directors to understand the policy of disadvantaged areas, help provide disease prevention measures, help poor students, improve school budget process.

4.6.4 Teachers

Similarly, in order to improve the identification of disadvantaged areas as well as the criteria, teachers also requested to keep the same amount of money (keep providing allowance), build more school buildings according to the school's actual needs, build teacher's accommodations, build libraries and support materials (textbooks), provide extra funding, to ilets, additional teachers, help deal with water shortage, electricity, post-disaster management and other issues, such as building fence, expanding school grounds, community involvement, direct school inspections, helping schools evaluate local teacher recruitment, disease prevention measures, and help poor students.

Chapter 5

DISCUSSION

5.1 Roadmap for identifying disadvantaged areas

Accoring to the contents in sub-decree No. 37 ANKR.BK of the Royal Government of Cambodia dated March 18, 2015 about area allowance for civil servants in the education and health have been assigned by the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport and the Ministry of Health, in consultation with the Ministry of Public Works and the Ministry of Economy and Finance as well as the relevant ministries on institutions and defining disadvantaged and remote areas' policies and criteria, and setting up allowances at specific locations on a regular basis.

The results of this study will contribute to the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport in making decisions on the setting up of disavantaged and remote areas with the proposal of the Province of Education, Youth and Sport each year.

To base this decision, the number of disadvantaged entities and schools, as well as the statistics of educational officials in disadvantaged areas, must be updated to meet the 7 criterias. Determining the number of criteria can be classified as areas and the number of schools face difficulties as follows:

2020 (starting): If it matches only one criteria, it should be cut out of some entities, and if it matches 2 to 4 criterias, it is classified into disadvantaged area type 1; in contrast, if it matches 5 to 7 criterias, it is classified into the disadvantaged area type 2 and it focuses on the schools which are the most difficult within the 25 provinces.

2021: If it matches only one or two criteria, it should be cut, and if it matches 3 to 5 criterias, it should be considered as the disadvantage area type 1. If it matches 6 to 7 criterias, it is classified as the disadvantaged area type 2 and it focues on the schools matching the 7 criterias in the 25 provinces.

2022: If it matches 4 to 7 criterias, it is classified into one single disadvantaged area and provide the support to the disadvantaged schools.

2023 onwards: If it matches 5 to 7 criterias, it is classified into one single disadvantaged area and provide support to the disadvantaged schools.

At the same time, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport must have proper data management systems of entities and schools in disadvantaged areas with clear mechanisms for reducing the situation with full support to schools by strengthening school management.

5.2 Criteria for classification of disadvantaged areas

In this research, most educational officials are aware of the disadvantaged area about their allowance they receive for working in the disadvantaged entities and schools set out in the Prakas No. 2603 AYK.BK dated 01 October 2014 by the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport on identifying entities and schools as disadvantaged and remote areas.

The previous five criterias have been implemented in different ways which mean it is applied based on actual condition; some entities have only one condition, while some entities have two, three, and four conditions. 55% of participants felt that the criteria of the disadvantaged and remote areas should be modified with some additional criteria. However, transportation issues remain the mainstay of all criteria, followed by low population density, permanent flood, misuse of teachers, integration areas, incomplete schools and contract teachers. In addition, a number of factors should be taken into account: schools that are far away from urban areas, where there have no local teachers, no local markets, health centers, islands, transportation, waterways, malaria and infectious diseases, insecurity areas, landmines and unexploded ordnance, water scarcity, forests, mountain, etc. About 83% of Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport, and Districts of Education, Youth and Sport are regularly updating disadvantaged areas in accordance with the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport's direction No. 1277 AYK.BL, dated on 11 March 2019. The redefined areas are disadvantaged areas in type 1 and 2.

According to analysis above, the attachment of the Province and District of Education, Youth and Sport, the number of entities and schools that meet the new criteria of disadvantaged areas are decreasing.

The Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport shall have a strategy to cut off disadvantaged areas and provide strong support to the most disadvantaged areas by examining the situation of the schools in particular that designated by the Pronvince and District of Education, Youth and Sport, and the status of those schools as the basis for defining specific criteria.

5.3 Encouraging teachers in disadvantaged areas

How much should a teacher in a disadvantaged area receive a monthly allowance for type 1 and type 2?

The results of this study indicate that the area allowance should be given to civil servants who are working in disadvantaged entities and schools as follows:

- Allowance in disadvantaged areas type 1: KHR156,420.50
- Allowance in disadvantaged areas type 2: KHR185,808.50

The aforementioned area allowance can improve the living standards of the civil servants to pay for transportation, food, and accommodation for teachers from long distance provinces.

The disadvantaged schools should have high levels of infrastructure, financial facilities and additional support for educational officials who are working there to further encourage them to work hard and continue teaching there for long.

5.4 Feasibility of cancellation of remote areas

In response to the question, should there be more remote areas? Why? Through this research, all participants as well as the feedback received from the participants of the consultation workshop who supported for elimination of remote areas in type 1 and 2 and review the feasibility of those disadvantaged areas type 1 or type 2 according to the criteria of each region in response to the implementation of mitigation policies of poverty reduction and the recent development of the Royal Government, such as better telecommunications, making it easier for citizens, students and civil servants to travel, have local pagodas, hospitals and adequate electricity and also in the downtown area.

Chapter 6 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 Conclusion

The study on disadvantaged areas in education has received the full participation of stakeholders from 25 target Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport, 50 Districts of Education, Youth and Sport, and 100 schools, in which 53 are primary schools and 47 are lower secondary schools. At the same time, statistics are used on the basis of data, information, educational adnimistration and personnel management systems in consultation with skilled officials of relevant departments, and legal documents related to disadvantaged areas as well as documents through the literature review.

The disadvantaged areas have been identified through a Prakas by the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport, as well as further instructions to the Provinces of Education, Youth and Sport in regular updates with number of entities and schools, as well as the number of officials in disadvantaged areas, was determined by Provinces of Education, Youth with the approval of the Provincial Governor to identify disadvantaged areas include:

- Areas of transportation difficulties
- Areas with population density less than 10 people per sq.km
- · Areas with permanent flood or natural disaster
- Areas with incomplete schools
- · Areas with integration or border
- Areas with employing 50% of contract, two-classes, two-shift teachers (for primary school)
- Areas with employing 30% of unspecialized and additional time teachers (for lower secondary education)
- Others: Schools located far away from districts, areas with no local teachers, no markets, no health centers, areas of islands, waterway transportation, malaria and infectious diseases, insecurity areas, landmine, water scarcity, mountains, etc.

6.2 Recommendations

According to the result of the research study, the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport should focus on the disadvantaged situation of the schools directly rather than focus on the area because the situation does not reflect the realities and needs of the schools. Moreover, teachers who volunteer to work in disadvantaged schools should be encouraged by providing budgets, resources, and opportunities to stabilize their families. In order to ensure the effectiveness of the implementation of the use of the area allowance, the determination of the use of education staff, the deployment of teachers and the encouragement of teachers in disadvantaged areas, the recommendations from this study propose to the Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport with the following mechanisms:

- 1. Update the disadvantaged entities and schools (low, medium, high) with a database to accurately record the changing situations of the entities and schools.
- 2. Reductive strategies of support for schools and entities where are facing less disadvantages to help the most disadvantages.
- 3. Strengthen the school evaluational system, disadvantaged entities to meet the criteria and changes in a timely manner.
- 4. Regular financial support, incentives, and additional support for teachers who volunteer to teach at extremely disadvantaged schools.
- 5. Strengthen teacher-transferring system transferring in and out, selection examination responding to the actual needs of each school.
Author Committee

KANG Sophanna

HAM Kunthea

SIV Samphors

Technical Committee

KANG Sophanna

HAM Kunthea

SIV Samphors

CHHIM Rithivong

IV Channara

HAK Makara

KEO Ratanak

Data Collectors

All DoPo's officials

References

- Baum, S 2006, 'A typology of socio-economic advantage and disadvantage in Australia's large non-metropolitan cities, towns and regions', Australian Geographer, vol.37, no.2, pp.233–58.
- Baum, S, Haynes, M, van Gellecum, Y. & Han, J. H. 2006, 'Advantage and disadvantage across Australia's extended metropolitan regions: a typology of socioeconomic outcomes', Urban Studies, vol.43, no.9, pp.1549–79.
- Dr. Hang Chuon Naron. (2015, March 24). Vision of Education Reform in Cambodia. Phnom Penh, Cambodia: Minstry of Education Youth and Sport.
- Dodson, J & Sipe, N 2007, 'Oil vulnerability in the Australian city: assessing socioeconomic risks from higher urban fuel prices', Urban Studies, vol.44, no.1, pp.37–62. 2008, Unsettling suburbia: the new landscape of oil and mortgage vulnerability in Australian cities, Griffith University, Brisbane.
- Fata No and Socheng Nguon. (2018). Teacher Management and Redployment : Issue and Practical Ways Forwards. Phnom Penh: MoEYS.
- Fata No and Sokcheng Nguon. (2018). Teacher Managment and Redeployment. Phnom Penh: Minstry of Education Youth and Sport.
- Hulse, K., Pawson, H., Reynolds, M., & Herath, S. (2014). Disadvantaged Places in urban Australia: Analaysis socio-economic diversity and housing market performance.
 AHURI Final Report No.225. Melbourne: Australian Housing and Urban Research Institute. Retrieved 03 05, 2019, from http://www.ahuri.edu.au/publications/projects/myrp704
- Kath Hulse, Hal Pawson, Margaret Reynolds, & Shanaka Herath. (2014). Disadvantaged Places in urban Australia: Analaysis socio-economic diversity and housing market performance. AHURI Final Report No.225. Melbourne: Australian Housing and Urban Research Institute. retrieved 03 05, 2019, from http://www.ahuri.edu.au/publications/projects/myrp704

- Luis Benveniste, Jeffery Marshall, Lucrecia Santibañez. (2007). Teaching in Lao PDR. The World Bank and Ministry of Education, Lao People's Democratic Republic.
- Luis Benveniste et al. (2008). Teaching in Cambodia. Phnom Penh: Worl Bank and Ministry of Eduction Youth and Sport.
- Luis Benveniste, Jeffery Marshall and M. Caridad Araujo . (2008). Teaching in Cambodia. Phnom Penh: The World Bank and MoEYS.
- MoEYS. (2018, June 08). Teacher Career Pathway Framework. Phnom Penh: MoEYS.
- OECD. (2012). Equity and Quality in Education : Supporting Disadvantaged Students and Schools. OECD.
- Public Education Statistics & Indicators. (2018-2019). Phnom Penh: Department of Education Management Information System.
- Reynolds, M & Wulff, M 2005, 'Suburban social-spatial polarisation and house price change in Melbourne: 1986–1996', Applied GIS, vol.1, no.1, pp.1–26.
- Suzanne Rice, Suzanne Rice, & Paul Richardson. (2017, February 9). The Conversation. retrieved The Conversation Website: https://theconversation.com
- Todd Pugatch & Elizabeth Schroeder. (2014). Incentive for Teacher Relocation. 2.
- Valerie Strauss. (2018). Teacher shortages are especially acute in rural areas. Here's one solution in Colorado. Washington: The Washington Post.
- Vinson, T 2007, Dropping off the edge: The distribution of disadvantage in Australia, Jesuit Social Services, Sydney.

Appendix

*Samples of capital, provinces, districts, and schools

	The sample of disadvantaged areas in education				
No.	Capital/Province	Krong/district	School		
		1. Krakor	1. Ansar Chambok Primary School		
			2. Svay Sar Lower Secondary School		
01	Pursat	2. Krong Pursat	3. Phnom Trang Primary School		
			4. Thmor Bei Dom Lower Secondary		
			School		
		3. Prasat Sambo	5. Sambo Primary School		
02	Kampong Thom		6. Atsou Lower Secondary School		
02		4. Prasat Balang	7. Sala Visai Primary School		
			8. Bosveng Lower Secondary School		
		5. Ekphnom	9. Bakprea Primary School		
			10. Prey Chas Lower Secondary School		
03	Battambang	6. Ratanak Mondul	11. Srang Meanchey Primary School		
			12. Meta Karona Lower Secondary		
			School		
	Siem Reap	7. Kralanh	13. Sarsai Pong Primary School		
			14. Toek Chum Lower Secondary		
04			School		
		8. Pouk	15. Mukpen Primary School		
			16. Trakiet Lower Secondary School		
	Kampong Cham	9. Cherng Prey	17. Koh Champar Primary School		
			18. Pringchum Lower Secondary		
05			School		
		10. Srey Santhor	19. Sleng Primary School		
			20. Ksorng Lower Secondary School		
	Tbaung Khmum	11. Tbaung Khmum	21. Damnak Char Primary School		
07			22. Ancherm Lower Secondary School		
06			23. Trapeang Pring Primary School		
		12. Ponha Krek	24. Trapeang Phlong Lower Secondary School		
			501001		

		13. Krong Serei	25. Chhuk Primary School
a –	Banteay Meanchey	Sophorn	26. Mkak Lower Secondary School
07		14. Mongkul Borei	27. Sraschhuk Primary School
			28. Sambo Lower Secondary School
		15. Samrong Tong	29. Kantuot Primary School
	Kampong Speu		30. Toul Samphy Lower Secondary
08			School
00		16. Phnom Srouch	31. Treng Trayoeng Primary School
			32. Sansam Kosal Lower Secondary School
	Kratie	17. Sambo	33. Opreah Primary School
00			34. Okreang Lower Secondary School
09		18. Chet Borei	35. Svay Chrum Primary School
			36. Meanchey Lower Secondary School
		19. Toek Chhou	37. Prek Tnot Primary School
10	Kampot		38. Trapeang Ropov Lower Secondary School
10		20. Kampong Trach	39. Anlong Thlan Primary School
			40. Russey Srok Lower Secondary School
	Kandal	21. Koh Thom	41. Chroy Snor Primary School
			42. Prek Chrey Lower Secondary
11			School
		22. Saang	43. Chroy Russey Primary School
			44. Hun Sen Prasat Lower Secondary School
	Phnom Penh	23. Posenchey	45. Phliet Simpealy Primary School
12			46. Toul Snor Lower Secondary School
12		Duccov Keo	47. Prek Rang Primary School
		Russey Keo	48. Prek Rang Lower Secondary School
			49. Krang Chambok Primary School
13	Prey Veng	25. Svay Antor	50. Serei Udom Lower Secondary School
	7 0	26. Porieng	51. Prek Chreyleu Primary School
			52. Heng Samrin Anlong Trea Lower Secondary School

	Svay Rieng	27. Krong Bavit	53. Prasat Primary School
14			54. Prasat Lower Secondary School
14		28. Chantrea	55. Toul Sdei Primary School
			56. Chantrea Lower Secondary School
	Preah Sihanouk	29. Stunghav	57. Thmor Rieng Primary School
			58. Keo Phos Lower Secondary School
15		30. Preynob	59. Prek Svay Primary School
			60. Dongbreng Tanai Lower Secondary School
			61. Kamnob Primary School
16	Takeo	31. Kirivong	62. Wat Angkor Lower Secondary School
10		32. Treang	63. Prey Sandek Primary School
			64. Watbarayvihear 2 Lower Secondary School
	Kampong Chhanng	33. Toek Phos	65. Hun Sen Romeas Primary School
			66. Akphivat Lower Secondary School
17		34. Samaki Meanchey	67. Andongbreng Primary School
			68. Chrok Tnot Lower Secondary School
	Кер	35. Krong Kep	69. Hun Sen Kep Primary School
18			70. Hun Sen Keo Krasang Lower Sec- ondary School
		36. Damnak	71. Chamkar Svay Primary School
		Chang Eur	72. Pongtoek Lower Secondary School
	Mondulkiri	27 0	73. Bourang Primary School
10		37. Orang	74. Dakdam Lower Secondary School
17		38. Pichreada	75. Sre Sleng Primary School
			76. Ophlay Lower Secondary School
		39. Sesan	77. Ophon Primary School
			78. Sesan Lower Secondary School
20	Stung Treng	reng 40. Siembok	79. Ochraloeng Primary School
			80. Orussey Kandal Lower Secondary School

41. Chongkal 82. Cherng Tien Lowe	
	er Secondary
21 Otdar Meanchey School	
42. Krong Samrong	k Primary School
42. Krong Sannong 84. Osmach Lower Se	condary School
43. Kulen 85. Koh Ke Primary S	chool
45. Kulen 86. Srayang Lower Sec	condary School
22 Preah Vihear 44. Krong Tbeng 87. Bakam Primary So	chool
Meanchey 88. Chheanmuk Lowe School	er Secondary
45. Barles 89. Trom Primary Sch	nool
45. Borkeo 90. Borkeo Lower Sec	ondary School
23 Ratanakiri91. Neang Dei Primar	y School
46. Konmum 92. Sre Ankrang Lowe	er Secondary
School	
93. Andong Toek Prin	nary School
47. Bortum Sakor 94. Ponleu Vichea Lov School	wer Secondary
24 Koh Kong 95. Bak Klang Primar	y School
48. Mondul Seima 96. Hun Sen Chamyea ondary School	am Lower Sec-
97. Bortangsu Primar	y School
49. Krong Pailin 98. Boryakhar Lower	Secondary School
25 Pailin 99. Salakrao Prmary S	School
50. Salakrao 100. Phsar Prum Low	er Secondary
School	-

Total: 26 municipality/provinces / 50 krongs/districts / 100 schools

*Data Entry Form

A	ព្រះពជាលាចត្រអង់ជា
	ខាអិ សាសនា ព្រះមហាអូក្រ
អេសិចអតុរូ តានឧច ចូចមួយប	
នានាមដឹរទមោលខានាលានា	
នទ្រន់បញ្ចូល	ធិខូន័យ
Data Entry	Form
ការស្រាចព្រះចស្តីពី តំបន់ដូចគ	ាល់ជាអត្ថទទិស័យអច់រំ
The Study on the Disadvantage	Area in Education Sector
(Ajមជុចលើ Link នាងក្រោមដើម្បីបញ្ហូលទិន្នន័យ)	
1 មន្ទីអេប៉រំ ឃុវជន និងកីឡា	25
2 ការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា	50
3 នាយកសាលាបឋមសិក្សា និងមឲ្យមសិក្សា	100
4 ដែលជៀននៅលោកហ្វារ៉ា ទូនអស់គហូរ៉ា	443
vita	618
	Version 1.0
	02019

* Setting variables in SPSS

unter sp_ID sp_Iype p_Type poince e nder rype ros ros ros ros ros ros ros ros ros sch s	Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	D Auto Number D Respondent ID D Type of Respondent D Province D Age D Gender D School Type D Numbers of years experience in the current position Numbers of years experience in the education sector D Age Rage D Age Rage D Numbers of years experience in the education sector D Age Rage D Numbers of years experience in the education sector D Age Rage D Number of years experience in the education sector D Age Rage D Number of years experience in the education sector D Age Rage D Number of years experience in the education sector D Age Rage D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of rease the education sector D Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers D Permanent flood or natural disaster area D Intergration area or nearby border D Incompleted school area D Others D Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	None None {1, PoE} None None 1, Primary School} 11, Primary School} None None 1, Less than 6 years} 1, Less than 6 years 1, Less than 6 years 1, Less than 6 years 1, Nover known 0, No 10, No 11, 10f 5}	None None None None None None None None	Scale Scale Nominal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale Ordinal Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
pp_Type pvince e nder Type Edu eT	Numeric String Numeric	8 16 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	0 Type of Respondent 0 Province 0 Age 0 Gender 0 School Type 0 Numbers of years experience in the current position 0 Numbers of years experience in the education sector 0 Age Rage 0 Number of years experience in the education sector 0 Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area 0 Intergration area or nearby border 0 Incompleted school area 0 Others 0 Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area 0 Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area 0 Difficult in transportation	[1, PoE} None None [1, Male} [1, Primary School} None [1, Less than 26} [1, Less than 6 years} [1, Less than 6 years} [1, Less than 6 years} [2, No} [0, No} [0, No} [0, No} [0, No} [0, No} [1, No} [1, No} [2, No} [2, No} [2, No} [2, No} [2, No} [2, No} [3, No} [4, 1 of 5}	None None None None None None None None	Scale Nominal Scale Scale Scale Scale Ordinal Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
wince e nder _Type _Cur_Pos _Cur_Pos _Dedu P _Dedu _Dedu	String Numeric	16 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Province Page O Gender O School Type D Numbers of years experience in the current position Numbers of years experience in the education sector O Age Rage O Numbers of years experience in the education sector O Mumber of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the education sector O Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of reas experience in the education sector D Ifficult in transportation D Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers D Permanent flood or natural disaster area D Incompleted school area D Others O Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	None None {1, Male} {1, Primary School} None {1, Less than 26} {1, Less than 6 years} {1, Less than 6 years} {1, Less than 6 years} {1, Less than 6 years} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {1, No, {1, No,	None None None None None None None None	Nominal Scale Scale Scale Scale Ordinal Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale
e nder Pos Cur_Pos Cur_Pos Edu ET DEud_T DA 22 2	Numeric Numeric	2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	 Age Gender Gender School Type Numbers of years experience in the current position Numbers of years experience in the education sector Age Rage Numbers of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the education sector Dumber of years experience in the education sector Dumber of years experience in the education sector Dumber of years experience in the education sector Difficult in transportation Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers Dermanent flood or natural disaster area Intergration area or nearby border Dincompleted school area Others Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area Difficult in transportation 	None {1, Male} {1, Primary School} None None {1, Less than 26} {1, Less than 6 years} {1, Less than 6 years} {1, Never known} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {1, No} {1, 1 of 5}	None None None None None None None None	Scale Scale Scale Scale Ordinal Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale
nder _Type Cur_Pos Edu PT Cur_Pos_T Cur_Pos_T Cur_Pos_T 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 4 2 2 3 2 4 2 5 5 2 6 3 4 4 5 ch_2 4 5 5 2 6 3 4 4 5 ch_2 4 5 5 5 5 6 5 7 5 7 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Gender D School Type D Numbers of years experience in the current position D Numbers of years experience in the education sector D Age Rage D Numbers of years experience in the current position D Numbers of years experience in the current position D Number of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Normber of years experience in the education sector D Number of years experience in the education sector D Intrompletion density less than 10 persons per square kilometers D Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers D Intergration area or nearby border D Incompleted school area O Others D Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	 [1, Male] [1, Primary School] None None [1, Less than 26] [1, Less than 6 years] [1, Less than 6 years] [1, Never known] [0, No] [0, No] [0, No] [0, No] [0, No] [0, No] [1, 1 of 5] 	None None None None None None None None	Scale Scale Scale Scale Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
1_Type Cur_Pos Edu T Cur_Pos_T De_Ud_T Dw_DA 2_1 Dw_DA 2_1 2 2 2_2 2_3 2_4 3 2_4 5 2_6 3 4 4 5 5 6 3 4 4 5 5 6 3 4 4 5 5 6 2_5 6 2_6 2_6 2_6 2_6 2_6 2_6 2_7 2_7 2_7 2_7 2_7 2_7 2_7 2_7 2_7 2_7	Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	School Type Numbers of years experience in the current position O Numbers of years experience in the education sector O Age Rage O Numbers of years experience in the current position O Numbers of years experience in the current position O Number of years experience in the current position O Number of years experience in the current position O Number of years experience in the current position O Number of years experience in the current position O Number of years experience in the current position D Number of years experience in the current position D Number of years experience in the current position D Number of not targe area D Officult in transportation D Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers Permanent flood or natural disaster area D Intergration area or nearby border Incompleted school area O Others Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	 Primary School} None None Less than 26} Less than 6 years} Less than 6 years} Less than 6 years} No} No} No No No No No No No No No No	None None None None None None None None	Scale Scale Scale Ordinal Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
D_Cur_Pos _Edu eT D_Cur_Pos_T D_Eud_T Dw_DA 2 1 2 2 2 3 4 2 5 2 6 3 4 4 5 5 2 6 6 3 4 4 5 5 2 6 6 3 4 4 5 5 2 6 6 3 4 4 5 5 2 6 5 5 2 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Numbers of years experience in the current position Numbers of years experience in the education sector OAge Rage Numbers of years experience in the current position Numbers of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the current position Difficult in transportation Oppulation density less than 10 persons per square kilometers Dermanent flood or natural disaster area Intergration area or nearby border Incompleted school area Others Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area Difficult in transportation	None 1, Less than 26} 1, Less than 6 years} 1, Less than 6 years} 1, Less than 6 years} 1, Never known} 0, No} 0, No} 10,	None None None None None None None None	Scale Scale Ordinal Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
D_Edu D_Cur_Pos_T D_Eud_T Dy DA 2 2 2 2 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 2 4 2 5 5 5 4 5 5 5 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Numbers of years experience in the education sector Age Rage Numbers of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the education sector Number of years experience in the education sector Number of years experience in the education sector Onumber of years experience in the education sector Number of years experience in the education sector Difficult in transportation Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers Demanent flood or natural disaster area Intergration area or nearby border Incompleted school area Others Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area Difficult in transportation	None {1, Less than 26} {1, Less than 6 years} {1, Less than 6 years} {1, Never known} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {1, No} { N	None None None None None None None None	Scale Ordinal Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
T Cur_Pos_T Dw_DA Dw_DA 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Age Rage Numbers of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the education sector Sknow about disadvantage area Difficult in transportation DPopulation density less than 10 persons per square kilometers Permanent flood or natural disaster area DIntergration area or nearby border Incompleted school area Others Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area Difficult in transportation	 Less than 26) Less than 6 years} Less than 6 years} Less than 6 years} No} No No<td>None None None None None None None None</td><td>Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale</td>	None None None None None None None None	Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
D_Cur_Pos_T D_Eud_T Dw_DA 1 2 2 2 3 4 4 2 5 2 6 3 4 4 5 2 4 5 2 6 3 4 4 5 2 4 5 2 6 3 4 4 5 2 4 5 2 6 5 2 6 5 2 6 5 2 6 5 2 6 5 2 6 5 5 2 6 5 5 2 6 5 5 2 6 5 5 2 6 5 5 2 6 5 5 2 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Numbers of years experience in the current position Number of years experience in the education sector Know about disadvantage area Difficult in transportation Depulation density less than 10 persons per square kilometers Permanent flood or natural disaster area Dintergration area or nearby border Dintergration area DOthers Qumber of criterias identifying disadvantaged area Difficult in transportation	 Less than 6 years} Less than 6 years} Never known} No} 	None None None None None None None	Ordinal Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
D_Eud_T DM_DA 21 22 23 23 23 24 25 26 3 4 5ch_1 4 5ch_2 4 5ch_2 4 5ch_2 4 5ch_3 4 5ch_2 4 5ch_3 4 5ch_4 4 5ch_5 5 -PoEDoE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Number of years experience in the education sector Nnow about disadvantage area Difficult in transportation Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers Permanent flood or natural disaster area Intergration area or nearby border Dincompleted school area Others Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area Difficult in transportation	 Less than 6 years} Never known} No} 	None None None None None None	Ordinal Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
ow_DA 2_1 2_2 2_3 2_4 2_5 2_6 3 4 4_Sch_1 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_3 4_Sch_3 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_Sch_5 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	D Know about disadvantage area D Difficult in transportation D Population density Less than 10 persons per square kilometers D Permanent flood or natural disaster area D Intergration area or nearby border D Incompleted school area D Others D Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	 Never known} No} 	None None None None None	Scale Scale Scale Scale Scale
2_1 2_2 2_3 2_4 2_5 2_6 3_3 4 4_Sch_1 4_Sch_2 4 4_Sch_2 4 4_Sch_3 4 4_Sch_3 4 4 5 5 5 4 5 5 6 5 6 5 6 5 6 5 6 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	D Difficult in transportation D Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers D Permanent flood or natural disaster area D Intergration area or nearby border O Incompleted school area D Others O Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	{0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {1, 1 of 5}	None None None None None	Scale Scale Scale Scale
2 2 2 3 2 4 2 5 2 6 3 4 4 Sch 1 4 Sch 2 4 Sch 2 4 Sch 3 4 Sch 3 4 Sch 3 4 Sch 4 4 Sch 5 5 PoEDoE 5 1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	D Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers D Permanent flood or natural disaster area D Intergration area or nearby border D Incompleted school area D Others D Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	{0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {1, 1 of 5}	None None None None	Scale Scale Scale
2_3 2_4 2_5 3_ 4_Sch_1 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_3 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_POEDOE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	D Permanent flood or natural disaster area D Intergration area or nearby border D Incompleted school area O Others D Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	{0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {1, 1 of 5}	None None None	Scale Scale
2_4 2_5 3_ 4_Sch_1 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_3 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_POEDOE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	D Intergration area or nearby border D Incompleted school area O Others D Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area D Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation	{0, No} {0, No} {0, No} {1, 1 of 5}	None None	Scale
25 26 3 4 4. 5ch_1 4. 5ch_2 4. 5ch_2 4. 5ch_3 4. 5ch_5 4. 5ch_5 5. 90ED0E 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8 8	D Incompleted school area O Others O Number of criterias identifying disadvantaged area O Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area O Difficult in transportation	{0, No} {0, No} {1, 1 of 5}	None	
3 4 4_Sch_1 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_3 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_POEDOE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8	DOthers DNumber of criterias identifying disadvantaged area DNumber of institute and school in disadvantaged area Difficult in transportation	{1, 1 of 5}	None	Scale
4 <u>4</u> Sch_1 <u>4</u> Sch_2 <u>4</u> Sch_3 <u>4</u> Sch_4 <u>4</u> Sch_5 <u>4</u> Sch_6 <u>5</u> POEDOE <u>5</u> 1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8	Number of institute and school in disadvantaged area D Difficult in transportation			Scale
4_Sch_1 4_Sch_2 4_Sch_3 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_POEDOE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8	D Difficult in transportation		6	Nominal
4_Sch_2 4_Sch_3 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_POEDOE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8		None	None	Scale
4_Sch_3 4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_POEDOE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric			{0, No}	None	Scale
4_Sch_4 4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_PoEDoE 5_1	Numeric Numeric Numeric	8	D Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers	{0, No}	None	Scale
4_Sch_5 4_Sch_6 5_PoEDoE 5_1	Numeric Numeric		D Permanent flood or natural disaster area	{0, No}	None	Scale
6 4_Sch_6 5_PoEDoE 5_1	Numeric		0 Intergration area or nearby border	{0, No}	None	Scale
5_POEDOE 5_1			0 Incompleted school area	{0, No}	None	Scale
5_1			0 Others	{0, No}	None	Scale
	Numeric		0 Update based on letter 1277	{1, Yes}	None	Nominal
	Numeric		0 Difficult in transportation	{0, No}	None	Scale
5_2 5 3	Numeric		0 Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers	{0, No} {0, No}	None None	Scale Scale
5_5 5_4	Numeric		0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area 0 Intergration area or nearby border	{0, N0}	None	
5 5	Numeric Numeric		Incompleted school area	{0, No}	None	Scale Scale
56	Numeric		Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50%	{0, N0}	None	Scale
5_0	Numeric		0 Missing subject teachers with additional hours from 30%	{0, No}	None	Scale
5 8	Numeric		O Others	{0, No}	None	Scale
Difficulty	Numeric		D Still difficulty	{1, Yes}	None	Scale
7	Numeric		DUpdate the disadvantage area	{1, Yes}	None	Nominal
7_Yes	Numeric		D The number of disadvantaged area type	{0, No}	None	Scale
3 1	Numeric		D Difficult in transportation	{0, No}	None	Scale
3 2	Numeric		0 Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers	{0, No}	None	Scale
3_3	Numeric	8	0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area	{0, No}	None	Scale
3_4	Numeric	8	0 Intergration area or nearby border	{0, No}	None	Scale
3_5	Numeric	8	0 Incompleted school area	{0, No}	None	Scale
3_6	Numeric	8	0 Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50%	{0, No}	None	Scale
3_7	Numeric		0 Missing subject teachers with additional hours from 30%	{0, No}	None	Scale
3_8	Numeric		0 Others	{0, No}	None	Scale
9_1	Numeric		0 Difficult in transportation	{0, No}	None	Scale
						Scale
						Scale
						Scale
						Scale
_						Scale Scale
						Scale
)						Scale
1 1						Scale
1 2						Scale
1_3	Numeric			{0, No}	None	Scale
1 4	Numeric			{0, No}	None	Scale
1_5	Numeric	-		{0, No}	None	Scale
1_6				{0, No}	None	Scale
1_7				{0, No}	None	Scale
1_8				{0, No}	None	Scale
)_1	Numeric			{0, No}	None	Scale
	Numeric			{0, No}	None	Scale
)_2				{0, No}	None	Scale
)_3	Numeric				None	Scale
	Numeric				None	Scale
0_3 0_4 0_5						Scale
D_3 D_4 D_5 I	Numeric				None	Scale
D_3 D_4 D_5 L 4_1	Numeric Numeric	8		{0, No}	None	Scale
D_3 D_4 D_5 I 4_1 4_2	Numeric Numeric Numeric					Scale
D_3 D_4 D_5 L 4_1 4_2 4_3	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8				Scale
0_3 0_4 0_5 1 4_1 4_2 4_3 4_4	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8	DIOthors			
D_3 D_4 D_5 L 4_1 4_2 4_3 4_4 4_5	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8	0 Others	{0, No}	None	Scale
23 04 05 1 41 42 43 43 44 43 44 45 20 0	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8	0 Incentive for Disadvantaged Area	None	None	Scale
D_3 D_4 D_5 L 4_1 4_2 4_3 4_4 4_5	Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric Numeric	8 8 8 8 8				
	_2 _3 _4 _5 _6 _7 _8 _1 _2 _3 _4 _5 _6 _7 _7 _8 _1 _2 _5 _6 _7 _7 _8 _1 _2 _3 _2 _3 _2 _3 _2 _3 _2 _3 _2 _2 _3 _2 _3 _2 _3 _2 _3 _2 _2 _3 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _3 _2 _2 _2 _3 _3 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2 _2	2 Numeric 3 Numeric 4 Numeric 5 Numeric 6 Numeric 7 Numeric 8 Numeric 1 Numeric 2 Numeric 3 Numeric 4 Numeric 5 Numeric 6 Numeric 7 Numeric 8 Numeric 9 Numeric 2 Numeric 3 Numeric 2 Numeric 3 Numeric 4 Numeric 3 Numeric 5 Numeric 1 Numeric	2 Numeric 8 3 Numeric 8 4 Numeric 8 5 Numeric 8 6 Numeric 8 7 Numeric 8 8 Numeric 8 9 Numeric 8 1 Numeric 8 2 Numeric 8 2 Numeric 8 4 Numeric 8 5 Numeric 8 6 Numeric 8 7 Numeric 8 6 Numeric 8 7 Numeric 8 1 Numeric 8 2 Numeric 8 3 Numeric 8 4 Numeric 8 1 Numeric 8 1 Numeric 8 1 Numeric 8 1 Numeric 8	2 Numeric 8 0 Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers 3 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area 4 Numeric 8 0 Intergration area or nearby border 5 Numeric 8 0 Incompleted school area 6 Numeric 8 0 Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50% 7 Numeric 8 0 Others 8 Numeric 8 0 Others 9 Numeric 8 0 Others 1 Numeric 8 0 Others 2 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area 1 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area 2 Numeric 8 0 Intergration area or nearby border 5 Numeric 8 0 Intergration area or nearby border 5 Numeric 8 0 Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50% 7 Numeric 8 0 Intergrat	2 Numeric 8 O Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers (0, No) 3 Numeric 8 O Permanent flood or natural disaster area (0, No) 4 Numeric 8 O Intergration area or nearby border (0, No) 5 Numeric 8 O Incompleted school area (0, No) 6 Numeric 8 O Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50% (0, No) 7 Numeric 8 O Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50% (0, No) 8 Numeric 8 O Others (0, No) 9 Numeric 8 O Change the criteria of disadvantaged area in Prakas 2603? (1, Yes) 1 Numeric 8 O Enge the criteria of disadvantaged area in Prakas 2603? (1, Yes) 2 Numeric 8 O Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers (0, No) 2 Numeric 8 O Permanent flood or natural disaster area (0, No) 3 Numeric 8 O Incompleted school area (0, No) 5 Numeric 8 O Incompleted school area <td>2 Numeric 8 0 Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers {0, No} None 3 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area {0, No} None 4 Numeric 8 0 Intergration area or nearby border {0, No} None 5 Numeric 8 0 Incompleted school area {0, No} None 6 Numeric 8 0 Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50% {0, No} None 7 Numeric 8 0 Others {0, No} None 8 Numeric 8 0 Others {0, No} None 1 Numeric 8 0 Others {0, No} None 2 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area {0, No} None 2 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area {0, No} None 2 Numeric 8 0 Intergration area or nearby border {0, No} None</td>	2 Numeric 8 0 Population density less than 10 persons per square kilometers {0, No} None 3 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area {0, No} None 4 Numeric 8 0 Intergration area or nearby border {0, No} None 5 Numeric 8 0 Incompleted school area {0, No} None 6 Numeric 8 0 Contract teacher and 2 shifts from 50% {0, No} None 7 Numeric 8 0 Others {0, No} None 8 Numeric 8 0 Others {0, No} None 1 Numeric 8 0 Others {0, No} None 2 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area {0, No} None 2 Numeric 8 0 Permanent flood or natural disaster area {0, No} None 2 Numeric 8 0 Intergration area or nearby border {0, No} None

* Guidelines for updating entities, schools and education staff in disadvantaged areas





* A sub-decree on area allowance for civil servants in education and health

භාලිකා්සා ...

អនុក្រឹត្យនេះ មានគោលដៅ ៖

- កំណត់គោលការណ៍និងលក្ខណៈវិនិច្ឆ័យនៃតំបន់ជួបការលំបាកនិងតំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាល
- កំណត់ប្រាក់តំបន់សម្រាប់មន្ត្រីរាជការស៊ីវិលក្នុងវិស័យអប់រំនិងវិស័យសុខាភិបាល

භාලනාග ..

អនុក្រឹត្យនេះ មានវិសាលភាពអនុវត្តចំពោះមន្ត្រីរាជការស៊ីវិលក្នុងវិស័យអប់រំនិងវិស័យសុខាភិបាល។

ຮໍດູສສິພ

ភារតំលាត់សិចភារឧតួលស្គាល់មន្ត្រីពខភារ តួចតំមន់ខួមភារលំបាតសិចតំមន់ដាច់ស្រយាល

භාෂාය ..

ក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា និងក្រសួងសុខាភិបាល ដោយមានការពិគ្រោះយោបល់ជាមួយ ក្រសួងមុខងារសាធារណៈ និងក្រសួងសេដ្ឋកិច្ចនិងហិរញ្ញវត្ថុ ព្រមទាំងជាមួយក្រសួង ស្ថាប័នពាក់ព័ន្ធ ត្រូវ កំណត់គោលការណ៍និងលក្ខខណ្ឌវិនិច្ឆ័យ ឱ្យបានច្បាស់លាស់ក្នុងការកំណត់តំបន់ជួបការលំបាកនិងតំបន់ ដាច់ស្រយាល ដោយផ្អែកលើស្ថានភាពផ្អែកសង្គមនិងសេដ្ឋកិច្ចជាក់ស្តែងនៃទីតាំងភូមិសាស្ត្រនីមួយៗ ព្រម ទាំងកំណត់ចំនួនមន្ត្រីរាជការក្នុងវិស័យអប់រំ និង វិស័យសុខាភិបាលដែលត្រូវទទួលប្រាក់តំបន់នៅតាមទីតាំង ភូមិសាស្ត្រជាក់លាក់ឱ្យបានរួចរាល់មុនខែមេសានៃឆ្នាំនីមួយៗ ដោយត្រូវអនុវត្តគិតចាប់ពីខែមករាដល់ខែធ្នូ។ ទោ**ត្រះ៥**...

រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា និង រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួងសុខាភិបាល ត្រូវសម្រេចតាមរយៈប្រកាស របស់ក្រសួង ដើម្បីកំណត់ទីតាំងភូមិសាស្ត្រជាក់លាក់នៅតាមរាជធានី ខេត្ត ជាតំបន់ជួបការលំបាកនិងតំបន់ ជាច់ស្រយាលក្នុងវិស័យអប់រំនិងវិស័យសុខាភិបាល តាមសំណើរបស់ប្រធានមន្ទីរអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡានិង ប្រធានមន្ទីរសុខាភិបាលរាជធានី ខេត្ត បន្ទាប់ពីបានស្នើសុំយោបល់ពីគណៈអភិបាលរាជធានី ខេត្ត ផ្អែកលើ ករណីពាក់ព័ន្ធនីមួយៗសម្រាប់រយៈពេលមួយឆ្នាំម្ដង ។

භාලූඝාර් ..

ប្រធានមន្ទីររាជធានី ខេត្តនៃក្រសួង ស្ថាប័នពាក់ព័ន្ធ ត្រូវចេញសេចក្តីសម្រេចទទួលស្គាល់ឈ្មោះមន្ត្រី រាជការក្នុងវិស័យអប់រំនិងវិស័យសុខាភិបាលដែលត្រូវទទួលប្រាក់តំបន់ បន្ទាប់ពីទទួលបានទិដ្ឋាការពីមន្ទីរ មុខងារសាធារណៈរាជធានី ខេត្ត។

6

ខំពូតនី៣ ភារភំណត់ត្រាត់តំចន់

හැඝාෆ් ..

ប្រាក់តំបន់ គឺជាប្រាក់សម្រាប់ឧបត្ថម្ភប្រចាំខែ ជូនដល់មន្ត្រីរាជការស៊ីវិលក្នុងវិស័យអប់រំនិងវិស័យ សុខាភិបាលដែលកំពុងបម្រើការងារនៅតាមទីតាំងភូមិសាស្ត្រដែលត្រូវបានកំណត់ជាតំបន់ជួបការលំបាកនិង តំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាលដូចមានចែងក្នុងមាត្រា៤និងមាត្រា៥ខាងលើ។

භාලබය් ..

ប្រាក់តំបន់ ពុំមានលក្ខណៈជាអចិន្ត្រៃយ៍ឡើយនិងត្រូវអនុវត្តអនុលោមបញ្ញត្តិនៃមាត្រា៤និងមាត្រា៥ ខាងលើ។ ការបើកផ្តល់ប្រាក់តំបន់ជូនមន្ត្រីរាជការស៊ីវិលដែលកំពុងបម្រើការងារនៅតាមតំបន់ជួបការលំបាក និងតំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាល ត្រូវអនុវត្តតាមតារាងទូទាត់បៀវត្សមន្ត្រីរាជការស៊ីវិលគ្រប់គ្រងដោយក្រសួងមុខងារ សាធារណៈ។

හැසාර් ..

ប្រាក់តំបន់ ត្រូវបានកំណត់ដូចខាងក្រោម ៖

ល.រ	បរិយាយ	កម្រិតប្រាក់តំបន់ប្រចាំខែ(រៀល)
୭	តំបន់ជួបការលំបាក	000 OD
២	តំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាលប្រភេទ១	900 000
M	តំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាលប្រភេទ២	000 OUC

តំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាលប្រភេទ១ ត្រូវបានប្រើប្រាស់ជំនួសវាក្យស័ព្ទតំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាលទីរួមខេត្ត និង តំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាលប្រភេទ២ ត្រូវបានប្រើប្រាស់ជំនួសវាក្យស័ព្ទតំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាលជនបទ។

භාලිකා 00 ...

កម្រិតប្រាក់តំបន់ដែលមានកំណត់ក្នុងមាត្រា៩ខាងលើ ត្រូវអនុវត្តចាប់ពីថ្ងៃទី០១ ខែមេសា ឆ្នាំ២០១៥ តទៅ។

භාලකාවව ..

ការកែប្រែប្រាក់តំបន់ ត្រូវធ្វើឡើងដោយអនុក្រឹត្យតាមសំណើរបស់រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួងសេដ្ឋកិច្ចនិង ហិរញ្ញវត្តុ និងរដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួងមុខងារសាធារណៈ បន្ទាប់ពីមានការពិគ្រោះយោបល់ជាមួយក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា និងក្រសួងសុខាភិបាល។

ខំពូ**អនី៤** អន្តរទ្យញ្ញត្តិ

භාලිභාවක .-

លិខិតបទដ្ឋានគតិយុត្តជាធរមានពាក់ព័ន្ធនឹងការគ្រប់គ្រង ការកំណត់តំបន់ជួបការលំបាក និង តំបន់ដាច់ស្រយាល និងការកំណត់ចំនួនមន្ត្រីរាជការដែលត្រូវទទួលប្រាក់តំបន់របស់ក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និង កីឡា ត្រូវបន្តអនុវត្តត្រឹមដំណាច់ខែធ្នូ ឆ្នាំ២០១៥ ប៉ុណ្ណោះ។

ពា

6

- ឯកសារ កាលប្បវត្តិ
- រាជកិច្ច
- ដូចមាត្រា១៤
- ខុទ្ធកាល័យឯកឧត្តម លោកជំទាវឧបនាយករដ្ឋមន្ត្រី

រដួមន្ត្រីត្រសួទសេដ្ឋកិច្ចនិទស្វិះញ្ញូទត្ថ

អូន ព័ន្ធមុនីត្រែ

- ខុទ្ធកាល័យសម្តេចអគ្គមហាសេនាបតីតេជោ នាយករដ្ឋមន្ត្រី
- អគ្គលេខាធិការរាជរដ្ឋាភិបាល
- អគ្គលេខាធិការដ្ឋានរដ្ឋសភា
- អគ្គលេខាធិការដ្ឋានព្រឹទ្ធសភា
- អគ្គលេខាធិការដ្ឋានក្រុមប្រឹក្សាធម្មនុញ្ញ
- ក្រសួងព្រះបរមរាជវាំង

- កន្លែចននួល ៖

ពេរុទ ម៉ិនឆិន

9, -- - Kis

រដូមន្ត្រីត្រសួចមុខចារសាធារណៈ

សម្តេចអង្គមហាសេខាមគីតេខោ ហ៊ុន សែន

ធ្វើនៅរាជធានីភ្នំពេញ ថ្ងៃទី ១៩ ខែ ទំភា ឆ្នាំ២០១៥ នាយភរដ្ឋមន

រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីទទួលបន្ទុកទីស្តីការគណៈរដ្ឋមន្ត្រី រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួងសេដ្ឋកិច្ចនិងហិរញ្ញវត្ថុ រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួង មុខងារសាធារំណេះ រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួងសុខាភិបាល រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីគ្រប់ក្រសួងនិង ប្រធានគ្រប់ស្ថាប័ន ត្រូវទទួលបន្ទុកអនុវត្តអនុក្រឹត្យនេះ តាមការកិច្ចរៀងៗខ្លួនចាប់ពីថ្ងៃចុះហ[័]ត្ថលេខាតទៅ។

> បានយកសេចក្តីគោរពជម្រាបជូន សម្តេចអគ្គមហាសេនាបតីតេជោនាយករដ្ឋមន្ត្រី សូមហត្ថលេខា

භාතාඉය්..

បទប្បញ្ញត្តិទាំងឡាយណាដែលផ្ទុយនឹងអនុក្រឹត្យនេះ ត្រូវទុកជានិពករណ៍។

ອາງສາ໑ຓ ..

ບໍ່ດຸສຂີຮູ អនសានទ្យញ្ញត្តី

អាសយដ្ឋានលេខ៨០ មហាវិថី ព្រះនារាក្តម ភ្នំពេញ កម្ពុជា ទូរស័ព្ទ: (៨៥៥-២៣) ២១០ ១៨៧ /២១៧ ២៥៣ /៤២៦ ៩៥១ ទូរសារ: (៨៥៥-២៣) ២១៧ ២៩០/ ២១២ ៥១២ អ៊ីមែល: info@moeys.gov.kh / crsmeys@camnet.com.kh ពេហទំព័រ : www.moeys.gov.kh

ប្រកការក.អង្គភាព និងសាលារៀនដែលស្ថិតក្នុងខេត្តដូចមានឈ្មោះខាងក្រោម ត្រវកំណត់ថាជាអង្គភាព និង សាលារៀនស្ថិតក្នុងខេត្តដាច់ស្រយាល ៖

ខំព័រដី ត

ព្រឹត្តទៅរបស់ក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា

-ទេត្តវតនតិរី

-តាមតម្រវការចាំបាច់របស់ ក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា

សមេច

-បានឃើញអនុក្រឹត្យលេខ១០២អនក្រ.បក ចុះថ្ងៃទី០៣ខែតុលា ឆ្នាំ ២០០២ ស្តីពីការកំណត់ការចំណា យដោយខ្សែកសម្រាប់អនុវត្តកម្មវិធីសកម្មភាពជាអាទិភាពនៅក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា។

-បានឃើញអនុក្រឹត្យលេខ ៨៥ អនក្រ-បក ចុះថ្ងៃទី ០៩ ខែមិថុនាឆ្នាំ២០០៩ ស្តីពីការរៀបចំ និងការប្រ

-បានឃើញព្រះរាជក្រមលេខ នស/រកម/០១៩៦/០១ ចុះថ្ងៃទី២៥ ខែ មករា ឆ្នាំ ១៩៩៦ ដែលប្រកាសឲ្យ ប្រើច្បាប់ស្តីពីការបង្កើតក្រសួងអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡា

ស្តីពីការរៀបចំ និងការប្រព្រឹត្តទៅរបស់គណៈរដ្ឋមន្ត្រី

វាជរដ្ឋាភិបាលនៃព្រះរាជាណាចក្រកម្ពុជា -បានឃើញព្រះរាជក្រមលេខ ០២/នស/៩៤ ចុះថ្ងៃទី ២០ ខែកក្កដា ឆ្នាំ១៩៩៥ដែលប្រកាសឲ្យប្រើច្បាប់

-បានឃើញរដ្ឋធម្មនុញ្ញនៃព្រះរាជាណាចក្រកម្ពុជា -បានឃើញព្រះរាជក្រឹត្យលេខនស/រកត/០៩០៨/១០៥៥ចុះថ្ងៃទី២៥ ខែកញ្ញា ឆ្នាំ២០០៨ស្តីព័តែងតាំង

រដ្ឋមន្ត្រីក្រសួចអប់រំ យុទ៩ន តិចឥត្បា

សីពី ការកំលាត់អច្ចភាព តិចសាលារប៉ុតស្ថិតកូចតំបត់ខាច់ស្រយាល តិចតំបត់ជួបការលំថ្ងាភ

រួមកាស

ากพอหน่า พุธธล อ๊อก็ญา เพอะโฮวอก แพล. 7บก

ត្រុះរាជាណាចក្រុងច្អដា ឋានិ សាសនា ព្រះទលាក្យត្រ

* Prakas on setting entities and schools in disadvantaged areas

ខំព័រខំ ៤

*សង្កាត់លោមមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្នំគ្រប់សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្មបីដុំអនុវិទ្យាល័យឲ្មមីដុំនិង សាណរបឋមសិក្សាម៉ូលីថ្នល់ចត់ ។ *សង្កាត់ចំរវ័នដល់ មានសាលាបឋបសិក្យាស៊ុយ សែមកំពង់ស្មោង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបរវង្ស។

• ក្រងពោធិ៍សាត់

ស្រុកវាលវ៉ែង សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្តិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។ •

ស្រុកក្រវ៉ាញ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិកក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។

៰-ខេត្តពោឌិ៍សាត់មាន៖

-ខេត្តមណ្ឌលត្វទី

-ខេត្តស៊ីជ័(តែជ័

-ទេត្តព្រះវិហារ

-ទេត្តកោះភាដ័

-ទេត្តប៉ៃលិន

ក្រោម៖

-ទេត្តឧត្តរមានជ័យ

ប្រកការ៣.អង្គភាព និងសាលារៀនដែលជួបការលំចាកនៅតាមរាជឆានី ខេត្តមានរាយឈ្មោះខាងក្រោម៖

ប្រការរម. ត្រូវបានកំណត់អង្គរាវាព និងសាលារៀនមួយចំនួនជាអង្គភាព និងសាលារៀនជួបការសំបាក ចំពោះ

អង្គភាព និងសាលារៀន ស្ថិតក្នុងតំបន់ដែលមានស្ថានភាពដូចគ្នា នឹងលក្ខខណ្ឌណាមួយដូចខាង

-តំបន់សមាហរណកម្ម និង ឬតំបន់ជាប់ព្រំដែន

-តំបន់ទឹកលិចអចិន្ត្រៃយ៍ និង ឫតំបន់ងាយរងរត្រាះដោយធម្មជាតិ

-តំបន់ជួបប្រទះការលំហាកខាងគមនាគមន៍

-ដង់ស៊ីតេប្រជាជនតិចជាង ១០ នាក់ក្នុងមួយគឺឡូអ៊ែត្រក្រឡា

-តំបន់ដែលមានសាលារៀនមិនត្រប់កម្រិត

ជំព័រដី ៣

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំឆាត់សណ្ដាឃ ឃុំន៍ពេដ យ៉ុរំវិស្លាប់ យ៉ុជ័យ ។

- ស្រុកកំពង់ស្វាយ
- ស្រុកព្រាសាទបាល្ល័ង្ក៍ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។
- ស្រុកប្រាសាទសំបូរ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកសណ្ដាន់ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។

៤-ខេត្តកំពន័នំ មាន៖

*ឃុំរកះថ្មី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលគ្គ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាររូបបាយក្រៀម ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិកក្នុង ឃុំរាំងទ័ល ៗ

• ស្រុកកណ្ដៀង

*ឃុំស្នាអន្យា	មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ប្រាក់ ។
*ឃុំភំពង់ឆោធ៍	មានសាលរបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់រាំង។
*ឃុំអន្សាចំបក់	មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ផ្តោល ។
*ឃុំអូរសណ្ដាន់	មានសាលាមឋមសិក្សាអួរអាកល់ ។
*ឃុំភ្បាលត្រាម	មានសាណបឋមសិក្សាភំពង់ឃ្លាស ។
	17 (MAR)

*ឃុំឆ្នោតវ៉ៃ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឈូកមាស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងវាល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដំ បូក១០០សាលាបឋមសិក្សាលោបស្រងាំ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអណ្ដូងស្វាយ ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំពេរិ៍គុំ ឃុំស្វាយស និងឃុំកំរាង់សួង ។

• ស្រុកក្រគរ

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតភ្នុង ឃុំតារលា ។

និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រាង ។

*ឃុំមេទឹកមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដីវនាតសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកក្រសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្នុមសំណ

- *ឃុំរំលេច មានសាលាបឋមស៌ក្បាភូមិថ្មី ។
- *ឃុំស្ទាមព្រះ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រាំពែ ។
- *ឃុំវឹងចេតណ្តោល មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបត់ត្រាច ។
- *ឃុំអូរតាច៉ាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាណៃ ។
- *ឃុំស្វាឃដូនតែវ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រប់ ។
- ស្រុកបាតាន

ភំព័រភ្នំ ៤

- ស្រុកវតនមណ្ឌល
- ស្រុកសំពៅលូនសាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនំងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។
- *ស្រុកវុក្ខតំរំ*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជន នំងកីឡាស្រុក ៗ •
- ស្រុកតាស់ក្រឡូសាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។
- ស្រុកភ្នំព្រឹក សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។
- ស្រុកកំវៀង សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។
- ស្រុកសំឡូត សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។

៣-ខេត្តចាត់ដំបន់ មាន៖

*ឃុំថឹងច្បាឈី ថានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងល្វាលើ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពប់អំមិល សាលាបឋម សិក្សាត្បែង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាវាលក្រែង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបង្ខីតាំងអ៉ន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរ សោម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរក្រញូង និងសាលាចឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងថ្កៅ ។

- *ឃុំបឹងហុ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្បែងសង្គ្រោះ ។
- *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំទីពោ នឹងឃុំក្រចា ។
- ស្រុកសន្ទុក
- ភាមុំ ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំគត័ធំ និងឃុំចាក់ស្នា ៗ *ឃុំស្រឡៅ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកអណ្តែត និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតេរជាហ៊ុន សែនទួល

ស្រុកបារាយណ៍

*ឃុំម្នាត្រង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រតាប ។

មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទំពេជ ។ *ឃុំត្រា

*សាលា រៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំពាមច្រង ឃុំពរាក ឃុំព្រះដំរី ឃុំបន្ទាយស្ទោង និងឃុំចំណាអរើ ៗ *ឃុំរុងរឿង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបទុមសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបុសតាសោមសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកន្លង រ៉ុង សាលាចឋមសិក្សាស្វាយរៀង សាលាចឋមសិក្សាពោធិ៍ និងវិទ្យាល័យ ហ៊ុន សែនរុងរឿង ។

• ស្រុកសោង៍

*ឃុំភំរាង់តោ សាហាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់គោក្រោម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់តោលើ អនុវិទ្យាល័យ កំពង់គោសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះគ្របបាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាខ្សាច់ជីរស់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា អូវគាសេកនិងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបូពឹង ។

*ឃុំផ្តៅ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគឺរឺជុំសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបរិបូណ៍សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអណ្តើក១១ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាពេជ្រចង្វារសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជាដាក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរឃ្មុំ សាលាបឋម សិក្សាអូរដៃខ្លាសាលាបឋមសិក្សានាងពួនសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងមាន់ទោ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបា ដាកជើង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូនមាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដុនមាយ២ សាលាបឋមសិក្សានាង លេម សាលាបឋមសិក្សារស្ម័សង្ហារ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកជ័រ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រង់មាន ជ័យ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យរមត្ថាភរុណា ។

*ឃុំអណ្តើតរំលេ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកណ្តាលស្ទឹង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្នាក សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ស៊ិនតុ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃអំពរ អនុវិទ្យាល័យព្រៃអំពរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រដក់ពង សាលា បឋមសិក្សាថ្មកង់ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកណ្តាល ។

*ឃុំផ្លូវ់មាស មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាផ្លូវមាស អនុវិទ្យាល័យផ្លូវមាស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរឈ្នូន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអ្វរដា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងខ្វុម សាលាបឋមសិក្សារសកសក និងសាលា បឋមសិក្សាអូតោស្ ។

*ឃុំត្រែង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារកាភ័ង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដ៏សាង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាគ្រក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងក្រវឹកសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិសុវត្ថិភាពកុម៉ាស៊ុ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែណ្ដេ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រៃត្នោតកុម៉ាស៊ី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជំនាប់ ដេះកុម៉ាស៊ី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប៊ូរុន និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអ្នតាកុក ។

• ស្រុកថាវេល

*ជុំអំពីចប្រាំរំខ៍ម មានអនុវិទ្យាល័យអំព៌លប្រាំដើម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដង្កោត្រមាំង សាលាបឋម សិក្សាភូមិសៀម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអំពិលប្រាំដើម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្តាពរ២ សាលាបឋម សិក្សាបឹងសង្កែលិច សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិថ្មី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូប សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្ជិជុំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងស្នូល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាយុត្តិធម៌ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងផុង សាលា បឋមសិក្សាបឹងពពូល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងអារក្ស និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំណាងព្រះស្រ័ ។ *ឃុំធ្វា មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភានី និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងសំរោង។

*ឃុំវ្គឃតារ៍ថា៖ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរដូនពៅសាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រាំងបាក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ឃ្លាំង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់រាំង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបូសង្រ្គាជ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំង ក្បាលស្វា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងសវង្គ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទំនប់ពាក្ខន សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ទូលស្នូល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្របហិប សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភាគត់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់រៃ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រះទឹកចាស់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃធំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងសារាយមាន ជ័យ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរតាញៀន ។

ជំព័រជី ៥

80

៩ នីក៉េន

សិក្សាម៉ៃឡាំ ។

និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបួនផ្លូរ ។ *ឃុំចែងមានជ័យ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រាំងចោត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្បាលក្រប៍ សាលាបឋម សិក្សាអន្លង់សុភី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងឈូក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលតានៀក និងសាលាបឋម សិក្សាអន្លង់សុភី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងឈូក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលតានៀក និងសាលាបឋម

ខន្តីឬស្ស៊ីរវាទិ៍ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃព្រាល ។ ៖ធំុំឆ្លឹង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងក្រសាលសាលាចឋមសិក្សាបុះសម្ព័រ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជីរក់

*ឃុំឆាត្រម មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអណ្ដូងនាង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរស្លាប៉ាង សាលាបឋមសិក្សា

• ស្រុកបាណន់

*ឃុំឆារ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដំណាក់រុន ។

*ឃុំរបស់មង្គល មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់ត្រាច និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់តាម៉ុក ។

*ឃុំថ្ងៃ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូនទ្រ័ ។

ីងទ្វីឡូវូវភា ទាន់ទោះទោះទទួលស្មានទទួលស្វីស្វាល់ ទោះទោះទទួលស្វារក្នុកសារ បឹងប្រិយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាយឺនមាន និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពេជ្រចង្វាលើ ។

ក្បាលម្វស ។ *ឃុំរូស្ស៊ីត្រាំង មានសាលាបឋមសំក្សានិគមរក្រាម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអ្នកតាទា សាលាបឋមសំក្សា

*ឃុំតាលាស់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសាករ ។ *ឃុំឆោង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិប៉ែន សាណាបឋមសិក្សាបោះពួយ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា

• ស្រុកចោងឬស្សី

ស្រុកឯកភ្នំ
 *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំកោះជីវាំង នឹងឃុំព្រៃចាស់ ។

*ឃុំតាម៉័ន មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រឡាយថ្ងូរ ។ *ឃុំរាំងភេសីមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃស្វាយ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយជាតិ ។

• ស្រុកសង្កែ

*ឃុំឆ្វា មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាស៊ុត និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រពើសែសិម ។ *ឃុំឃ្លាំង មានអនុវិទ្យាល័យឃ្លាំងមាស និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំប៉ូវស្នាវ ។ *ឃុំចឹងប្រាំ មានអនុវិទ្យាល័យបឹងប្រាំ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាចឹងប្រាំ ។

*ឃុំឆ្នាចទោស មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ្រោយស្នា ។ *ឃុំឆ្វា មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាស៊ិត និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រពើសែ

សិក្សាបឹងថ្ន ។

*ឃុំព្រៃខ្ពស់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងច្រនៀង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយខ្ចុំ: នឹងសាលាបឋម

ជំព័រជី តា

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំភែវ៉ាណ៍ ឃុំដូនភែវ ឃុំល្វ ឃុំវ័ល ឃុំត្រីញ័រ ឃុំមោង ឃុំត្ត័រួន និងឃុំពោធិទ្រាយ ។

• ស្រុកពួក

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំចាន់ស ឃុំខ្នារពាធិ៍ ឃុំកំពង់ឃ្លាំង ឃុំតាម៉ែត និងឃុំករពល ៗ

• ស្រុកសូត្រនិគម

*ឃុំតាអា៖ មានសាណបឋមសិក្សាទឹកជុំ អនុវិទ្យាល័យទឹកជុំនិងសាណបឋមសិក្សាសសៃពង ។

*ឃុំទត្លានដៃ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រះលាន ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិកក្នុង ឃុំត្រូចផ ឃុំឆាងគោ ឃុំសំបូរ ឃុំសែនសុខ នឹងឃុំសូច ៗ

ស្រុកក្រទុកញ់

*ឃុំកំរាង់ក្តិ៍ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាវស្មីសាមគ្គ័សន្តិភាព ។

*ឃុំធាតផ្លូវក្រោម មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឬស្សគរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបាក់អង្រុត សាលាបឋម សិក្សាខ្នារឆ្នង់ អនុវិទ្យាល័យខ្នារឆ្នង់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទ័ពសៀម សាលាបឋមសិក្សារបង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាទរដូនសុខ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគ័ទ្យតាឈឺម ។

លក ឃុំសង្វ័យ និងឃុំស្ពានភ្នោត ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំអន្លង់សំណរ ឃុំខ្លាវ ឃុំគោភច្ឆកលើ ឃុំរឹចរ៉ងថ្មស្សី ឃុំពង្រក្រេទ ឃុំតង្រលើ ឃុំឫស្សិ

- ស្រុកជីវ៉ែតដ៍
- ស្រុកបន្ទាយស្រី សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងឃុំនរាម ឃុំរំចកេ ឃុំតាឯក និងឃុំត្បែង ។
- ស្រុកអន្តរជំ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកអន្ឋរដុំ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកវ៉ារិន សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកស្វាយលើសាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកស្រីស្នំ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។

៤-ខេត្តសៀមរាប មាន៖

*ឃុំជ្រៃ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទេព្វិរុណ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលព្រះខែ ។

*ឃុំអូវតាភិ៍ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលតាម៉ៅ ។

និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគ្រស ។

• ស្រុកថ្មគោល *ឃុំអន្លង់រុន មានអនុវិទ្យាល័យអន្លង់រុន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់រុន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាឲបកាប់

*ឃុំកន្ទ័១ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ័ ។

ជំព័រជី ៩

*ឃុំតានុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលប៉ែន សាលាបឋមា
 ៣០ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំព័រ ។
 *ឃុំស្វាយទាប មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបុសថ្លាន់ ។
 *ឃុំស្អី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរវាយ ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំតម្រុត និងឃុំចំតារអណ្ដូង ១ *ឃុំតាអុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលប៉ែន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលមាស សាលាបឋមសិក្សា

ស្រុកចំការលើ

សែន សូភាស ។ *ឃុំទូលសំចូរ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលសំបូរ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យទូលសំបូរ ។ *ឃុំទូលព្រះឃ្លាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលព្រះឃ្លាំង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យទូលព្រះឃ្លាំង ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំអូម្លូ ឃុំដងត្តា ឃុំអារត្យវត្ថាត និងឃុំខួចតាងួន ។ *ឃុំសូតាស មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបំប្រក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសូភាស និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យ ហ៊ុន

• ស្រុកស្ទឹងត្រង់

៥-ខេត្តកំពជំបាម មាន៖

*ឃុំត្ររាំងធំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកូនសត្វ ។

*ឃុំថ្ងាគង់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាភោគ ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំចម្លើង្គ និងឃុំតំពង់ត្លូក ៗ

• ស្រុកប្រាសាទបាតង៍

*ឃុំគេកចត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកក្នោត សាលាបឋមសិក្សានគរក្រៅ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា គោកបេង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកតាចាន់ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យបាយ័ន ។

*ហាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្តិតក្នុង សង្កាត់ចងរឃ្លាំស សង្កាត់អំពីល និងមន្ទីរអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាខេត្ត ។ *ឃុំនតវធំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអញ្ចាញ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសហគមន៍ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា ស្តីធ្លើវអញ្ចាញអង្គរ ។

• ក្រុងសៀមរាប

ជ្រាសាទ។

*ឃុំឆសរស្គូថ្អ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកជ្រៃ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាខ្លាយ ។ *ឃុំផុះរ៉ែធ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាមុខប៉ែន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រកៀតនិងអនុវិទ្យាល័យត្រគៀត *ឃុំព្រៃជ្រុំត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រដាក់សាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រនៀង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា

*សុំពាមជីតង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះតូច ។ • ស្រុកកោះសូទិន *ឃុំព្រៃកតានង់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភំរាង់ចំបក់ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពន្លិចស្វាយ ។ • ស្រុកស្រីសនរ *ឃុំព្រៃអំដង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ព្រៅ និងសាណបឋមសិក្សាកេរូវ ។ *ឃុំទងត្រឡាច មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងទឹង ។ *យំវិបាល មានសាលាចឋមសិក្សាស្លែង សាលាចឋមសិក្សាអាសដីបាល់ សាណចឋមសិក្សា ខ្សោង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យខ្សោង ។ *ឃុំធូរាធណ៍ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្យាបឹងវែង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបារាយណ៍ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យ បារាយណ៍ ។ ជំព័រជី ៩

*ឃុំព្រែវត្រចៅ មានសាណបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកក្ររបា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចំការឪទុកែ សាលាបឋម សិក្សាអូរស្វាយ និងសាលាមឋមសិក្សាអណ្ដូងដៃ ។

*ឃុំព្រៃភុឃ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកកុយ អនុវិទុរ្ភល័យព្រែភកុយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាពោ

ទួលបី អនុវិទ្យាល័យឧត្តមទួលបី និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកន្លែងរុន ៗ

*ឃុំរាឃប៉ាយ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារាយប៉ាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគកត្រប៉ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា

*ឃុំត្រាន មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាវត្ថុទ្រាន និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យឃុំទ្រាន។ • ស្រុកភង៍មាស

*ឃុំស្រត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកាទៅ សាររាបឋមសិក្សាស្រុក សាលាបឋមសិករាពៃគយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាណ្ហក និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យល្អាក ។

ស្រុកភំពង់សៀម

- *ឃ័ត្រប់
- *ឃុំថ្វាឆាឃ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអួរម៉ាល់ ។ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារោធ ។

*ឃុំអូរស្វាយ មានសាលាមមមសិក្សាត្រពាំងកក់ ។

ហ៊េ និងសាលាបឋមសំភុពគងជ័យ ។

- *ឃុំច្បារអំពៅ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្ទឹងឆ្វេង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់ជ្រៃ ។
- ស្រុកបាជាយ

• ស្រុកជើងវ៉ៃព្ *ឃុំព្រឹងជ្រឹមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រឹងជ្រំអនុវិទ្យាល័យព្រឹងជ្រំនិងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះចំពាំ ។

ឧំព័រនី ០០

ឃុំឥង៍ ឃុំកំពាន់ នឹងឃុំរំចេក ។ *ឃុំជា មានសាលាបឋមសិក្យាប៊ុនរ៉ានី ហ៊ុនសែនស្ពាន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាមែករាុក សាលាឋឋម សិក្សាស្រែជាំ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអុរកំបត ។

ក្រមកទទត *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំទ្រេត ឃុំចាន់មូល ឃុំពី ឃុំពិត្រវ្យ៉ន ឃុំទន្ទុង ឃុំពិតារពី ឃុំង ឃុំត្រមូង ឃុំមេមង

- ស្រុកមេមត់
- បឋមសិក្សាអង្គរក្នុង។ • *ស្រុកតំបែរ* សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកតំរំមនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។

ជើងអង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុន សែនអំពុកនិងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ័របនិតម។ *ឃុំដូនតំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពើល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គរក្រៅ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃទំនប់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលអង្គុញ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្តានវ៉ៃជ្រ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតានី និងសាលា

សែនដីគុក។ *ឃុំគណ្តារផ្ដុំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលវិហារ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជាំច្ឆក សាលាបឋមសិក្សា

*លាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំវាឈ្មូ ឃុំកន់ នឹងឃុំត្រពាំងផ្លុង ។ *ឃុំវ័ត្រគ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាមេមៃ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្នល់កែង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុន

- ស្រុកពញាក្រែក
- *ឃុំជីវពរ៍២ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាត្រាវ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សារជ្រាយគរ ។
- *ឃុំថឹងព្រុល មានសាសាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងកំបោរនិងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងព្រះ ។
- *ឃុំ៣មជិលាំង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាឈើទាល និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបទស្លាស្នាប ។
- *ឃុំទន្លេចិន មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជុំគិរី ។

និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិវាល ។

សាលាបឋមសិក្សាឥសានមានជ័យ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យអញ្ចើម។ *ឃុំជិឆ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលកណ្តោល អនុវិទ្យាល័យទួលកណ្តោល សាលាបឋមសិក្សា វិការឃ្លួច សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជាងសារ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលខ្វាវ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្ទឹងពេញ

សំក្សាចាន់ទុង សាលាចឋមសិក្សាអង្គរជ័យ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគៀនរមៀត ។ *ឃុំអេញឹម មានសាលាចឋមសិក្សាកូនត្នាត សាលាចឋមសិក្សាដំណាក់ចារ សាលាចឋមសិក្សា ពន្លៃ សាលាចឋមសិក្សាអង្គែរ សាលាចឋមសិក្សាពោធិរោង សាលាចឋមសិក្សាព្រៃកំហែង

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ស្ទ័ធពជ្រ ឃុំឆារ ឃុំតោរាច្រាំ និងឃុំឆ្វៀង ។ *ឃុំស្រឡប់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគ្រពាំងឈ្លួស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងសង្កែ សាលាបឋម

្រ, អ្ន ។ *សាហាយនៃទាំងអស់សិតកង សំផុលជួរសំគ.គ

• ស្រុកត្បូងឃ្មុំ

៦-ខេត្តត្បូជ័ឃ្មុំ មាន៖

តំព័រឪ កក

ស្វាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្នឹងកំបុត និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពរពល ។ *ឃុំត្នំរបៀន មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឡោទេរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទ្រលោក សាលាបឋមសិក្សា កន្ត្រប់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំជោរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រជៅ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកណ្តោល ។ *ឃុំទឹតជារ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទឹកជោរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិថ្មី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចារលើ សាលាបឋមសិក្សារគាកក៏ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្មាច់ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរោង ។

សិក្សាឬស្យីកណ្តាល ។ *ឃុំឆានភាំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទានកាំ អនុវិទ្យាល័យទានកាំ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបន្ទាត់ ចោះ ។

សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគិរីវីន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រសាំងថ្មី និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ្រាសាទ ។ *ឃុំរប្បធាតជ័យ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរោងធំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សារំពាភ់ និងសាលាបឋម

ប៉ែន ។ *ឃុំជប់រំារី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ្រាបចាស់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ្រាប់ថ្មី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកក់

ស្រុកព្រះនេត្រព្រះ
 *បំព្រះនេត្រព្រះ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូនច្រែង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រមោច សាលាបឋមសិក្សា
 ពាម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រះកើត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រះលិច និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពោយតា

- ស្រុកស្វាយយោក សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកភ្នំស្រុក សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកថ្មីភ្លូក សាលារៀនទាំអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្ត្រភម៉ាន្បៃ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ៗ

៧-ខេត្តបន្ទាយមានដ័យ មាន៖

៖ឃុំទូលស្ទូល មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសង្គមមានជ័យ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលស្ទូល សាលាបឋម សិក្សាទូលក្រាច សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបីម៉ែត្រ អនុវិទ្យាល័យចំរំម័ត្រ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាប៉ាវ សាណបឋមសិក្សាធើងច្រង់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភពថ្មី និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភាប៉ាវភូមិចំព័ន ។

សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្កាដង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រវ៉ាក់ដែក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបារាយណ៍ សាលា បឋមសិក្សាបុះស្វាយ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រះ ។

*ឃុំឈូត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឈូក អនុវិទ្យាល័យ ហ៊ុន សែនឈូក សាលាបឋមសិក្សារូមវិញ

• ស្រុកក្រូ០គ្នារ

*ឃុំដំរឹឆ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ្រៃសុខុម សាលាបឋមសិក្សារពីក និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឆ្លួត។ *ឃុំព្រះធាតុ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សា១២ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា២៧ ។

• ស្រុកអូររាំងឪ

*ឃុំព្រៃសាទ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាចារក្រោម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអំពីល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាអំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទន្លាប់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់សា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបត់ត្រង់ និងអនុរិទ្យា ល័យជ្រាសាទ ។

*ឃុំបុស្បូវ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្របែក សាលាចឋមសិក្សាបុស្សូវ អនុវិទ្យាល័យបុស្សូវ សាលា បឋមសិក្សាស្រះខ្ញុំ សាលាចឋមសិក្សាតាបៅ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្បាលខ្ច័ង សាលាចឋមសិក្សា ព្រឹងកោង សាលាចឋមសិក្សាចន្ទាត់បោះ និងសាលាចឋមសិក្សាខ្ចាស់ ។

ក្រង់ប៉ោយប៉ែត

*សង្កត់ច៉ាយម៉ែត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសន្តិភាព សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសាមគ្គីមានជ័យ សាលា បឋមសិក្សាទូលប្រាសាទ វិទ្យាល័យទូលប្រាសាទ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃគប់ សាលាបឋម សិក្សាអ្វរនាង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរឬស្សីរលី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរឬស្សីក្រោម សាលាបឋម សិក្សាអូរឬស្សីកណ្តាល អនុវិទ្យាល័យអូរឬស្សី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលពង្រ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា អភិវឌ្ឍន៍ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រជាធម្ម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្ទឹងបត់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអណ្តូងថ្ម មាស និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទំនប់ក៥ ។

*សង្កាត់និមិត្ត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសុខសាន្ត សាលាបឋមសិក្សារស្ម័សាមគ្គ័ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ណាកាឆាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្ខបចាស់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់ស្វាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្ វិយាចាស់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរវាំងហាង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដុងអារ័ញ្ញ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្ម សិន និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យកូបធំ ។

• ស្រុតអូរក្សៅ

*ឃុំគុត្តឆគ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគុត្តសត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាយាយអត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្លប ភ្វួច អនុវិទ្យាល័យក្ខូបតួច និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអ្នក្មោតពង ។

*ឃុំតូళ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្វនត្រី អនុវិទ្យាល័យកូនត្រីនិងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរជ្រៅ ។ *ឃុំតុធិ៍ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វភី អនុវិទ្យាល័យសូភី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកព្រំច សាលា បឋមសិក្សាគោកចក និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងខ្ញុំ ។

*ឃុំឆំឆាង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរោង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិថ្មី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបត់ត្រង់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអញាញ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យសំរោងមានជ័យ ។

*ឃុំចង្ហា មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាចង្ហា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាឈូកជ្រៃ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យឈូក ។ *ឃុំឆង្ហំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសិង្ហ អនុវិទ្យាល័យសិង្ហ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពង្រ ។

*ឃុំអូរមីធំនំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្នួលទ្រេក៩៧ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្នួលទ្រេក៩៨ សាលា បឋមសិក្សាព្រាវ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាយាងអភិវឌ្ឍន៍ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃចាន់ សាលាបឋម សិក្សាយាងដង្កុំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជោគជ័យ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទំនប់ដាច់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា អាងសិលា និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យហេងដង្គំ ។

នំព័រនី ក៤

ស្រុកសិរីសោភ័ណ

*ឃុំឡាត់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាម្នាក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាម៉ា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាឈុក នំងអន វិទ្យាល័យម្នាក់ ។

• ស្រុកមង្គលបូរី

*ឃុំសំបូរ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំបូរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទុ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រះឈួភ សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធចែកអង្ករ សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធថ្មដប់ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យសំបូរ ។

*ឃុំគាតចរប្ត័ង្កមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាអន់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចារថ្មី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជើងចាប សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាសល់ និងអនុវិទុពល័យតាអន ។

*ឃុំចំណាម មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារោងគោ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចំណោម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសា មភ្ន័ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកពន្លៃ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជូរខ្ចាស់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដងរត្តាង សាលាមឋមសិក្សាបឹងត្រស់ សាលាមឋមសិក្សាសាយសាម៉ន សាលាមវត្តយ្យចំណោមនិងវិទ្យា ល័យរោងគោ ។

*ឃុំឆឿ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសឿ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគ្នោក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាផ្លូវដំរីក្រោម សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធបល្លង្កជ្រៃ សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធជំនឹក សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធអូរជួបថ្មី សាលាបឋម សិក្សាឆោកសំរោង នំងអនុវិទ្យាល័យស្មើ ។

មានសាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធខ្លាខាំឆ្កែ និងសាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធបឹងវែង ។ *ឃុំតាទ្យ័

- *ឃុំចន្ទាយនាង មានសាលាបឋមសំក្សាអូរអណ្ដង ។
- *ឃុំគឃម៉ែង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកសាង័ថ្មី ។

ស្រុកគង៍ពិសី សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំស្ថិត ។

៤-ខេត្តកំពជំស្ពឺ មាន៖

ឃុំទូលសាលា ៗ

• ស្រុកឧដុង្គ

៥-ខេត្តក្រាចេះ មាន៖

- ស្រុកថ្ពង៍ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងភ័ទ្យាស្រក ។

 ស្រុកសំរោជទង៍ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំទំព័រមាស ឃុំឆាំងត្រូច នឹងឃុំខ្ញុំត្រាំង។ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងឃុំជំមូព្រឹក្ស ៗ

- ស្រុកឱ្យ៉ាល់ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកភ្នំស្រួប សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក*រល័កលែងតែ* ឃុំទាាសាំង។

ស្រុកបសេដ្ឋ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំតក្តី ឃុំកាត់ត្លក ឃុំព្រះខែ ឃុំតក់ ឃុំផុង ឃុំស្វាឃចចឹម និង

87

• ស្រុកស្នល

*ឆុំថ្ងែចារ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូនប៉ុក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទ្រៀក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអញ្ចាញ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរតាញាណ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគីឡូ៦២ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគីឡូ៦៦ សាលា បឋមសិក្សាមាក់កណ្ដាល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្អាត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូនមាស សាលាបឋម សិក្សាស្រែទក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបាត់ហើយ នំឯសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែចារ ។

*ឃុំស្នូល មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគ្រង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងលាភ់ថ្មី និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា ក្រសាំង។

*ឃុំស្វាយដែះ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារំពុក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាពុំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិសាមគ្គ័ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគិរីសុខសាន្ត និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាយ៉ែ ។

*ឃុំឃ្សឹម មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឃ្សឹមក្នុងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាមិល សាលា បឋមសិក្សាស្រែថ្មី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចឹង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជូរក្រាំង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា ផ្ទោល។

*ឃុំ២ឆ្នូ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងស្រែ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រព័ញ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្ម ហាលវាល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជើងឃ្លេ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា២ធ្នូ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងស្រែ ក្នុង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រញ៉ូងសែនជ័យ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសែនអភិវឌ្ឍន៍ៗ

• ស្រុកសំបូរ

*ឃុំរ៍ស្រវិះ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែឆិះ សាលាឋឋមសិក្សារវៀង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអំតក សាលាឋឋមសិក្សាស្រែត្នោត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្នំព័រ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្វូនព៉ា *ឃុំរបូស មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារលួស អនុវិទ្យាល័យរលូសមានជ័យសាលាបឋមសិក្សាប៉ាត្លែ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែឈូក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប៉ាថានិងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រៃបឹង ។

*ឃុំអ៊ីអ៊ើង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរគ្រៀង អនុវិទ្យាល័យអូរគ្រៀងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូវព្រះ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះខ្មែរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរករណ្ដៀរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូវភ្លឹក សាលា បឋមសិក្សាពន្ធជា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាខ្សាច់លាវ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូវស្រែ។

*ឃុំគោះខ្មែរ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់រព្វា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះច្បារ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ស្វាយចេក និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យកោះខ្លែរ។

*ឃុំស្ទារបំដី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែស្បូវ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអ្វរតាណឹង សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ចង្ហប សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែត្រែង១ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែត្រែង២និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យក្បាលដំរី *ឃុំចឹងចារ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះដំបង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់រទេះ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតំ វៃ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យបឹងចារ ៗ

*ឃុំភំឆង់ឆម មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអារជន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទន្សោងធ្លាក់ សាលាឋឋមសិក្សា យាវ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ក្របី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអំពិលទឹក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះជ្រៅ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាវាលខ្យង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរគ្រូត និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យវាលខ្យង ។ *ឃុំភណ្តាន់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសង្គម ។

៤ ភិវព័ន៌

*ឃុំសំបូវ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះសំ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះរាល ។ *សំវៃខ្លាន: មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគាងនូ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាវឌ្គនេះ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់ ព្រះវតា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកត្រៀង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យព្រែកគ្រៀង ។

*ឃុំតំរីផុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃគោ សាលាបឋមសិភុពហ៊ុនសែនបឹងកៀប សាលាបឋម សិក្សាដំរីផុង អនុវិទ្យាល័យដំរីផុង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រទ្យាយទ្រៀក សាលាបឋមសិភ្សាក្រូច

• ស្រុកត្វង៍

សាលាបឋមស័ក្សាប្រហួត និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបល្ល័ង្គ ។

*ឃុំកំពង់ដំរី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាវាលកន្សែង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រម៉ា សាលាបឋមសិក្សា កណ្តោល និងសាលាបឋមសិត្សាកំពង់ឈើទាល ។

*ឃុំភញ្ចូរមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្យាលខ្លា។

*ឃុំព្រៃកសារ៉ាន់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឆក់ករទាង ។

ស្រុកចិត្របុរី

*ឃុំថ្មី មានសាលាបឋមសិត្សាប្អៀរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចំរើន សាលាបឋមសិក្សសណ្ដាយ សាលា បឋមសិក្សា១០៥ សាណាបឋមសិក្សាបឋមដ្ឋី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូនត្រី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិ ត្នោត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយជ្រំ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យមានជ័យ។

*ឃុំកត្ទត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែនន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់កេះ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអា លច សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គ្រង នំងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្ទង់វៀន។

*ឃុំចុសចាវ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពោធិ៍ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាល្វាទង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រះតន្លង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកក្ខុវ ។

*ឃុំថ្មអរណ៍ត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាល្អក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែដូង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរី សុខា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំពុង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដំណាក់សសរ ។

*ឃុំសំរុក មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងរុននឹងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសម្បទានកាកុត។

*ឃុំដារ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាខ្នងពស់និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជួរជ្រែ ។

*ឃុំចង្ក្រង់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកសាង អនុវិទ្យាល័យកសាង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចង្ក្រង់ សាលា បឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងទ្រាំង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាល្អ។

*ឃុំផាលាប់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រវ៉ាកោះដាច់ ។

ស្រុកព្រែកប្រសព្

*ឃុំចំបក់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្ទឹងធំ នំងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែតាទា ។

មានសាលាបឋមសិភ្សាខ្សាត់ និងសាលាឋឋមសិក្សាស្ទឹងទ្រ ។ *ឃំភាម៉ៅ

*ឃុំព្រែកប្រសព្វ មានសាណបឋមសិក្សារាឹងណាច ។

ជំព័រជី តម

90

ឧំព័រជី ក៦

*ឃុំតរណ្តាល មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឧត្តរមានជ័យ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃថ្មី ។

*ឃុំថ្មី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោច័នលែង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដូនស៊ាយ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដំរីផុង ។

*ឃុំតូនសត្វ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំឯកក់ក្នុង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គត្រឹះស្នា សាលាបឋម

សិក្សាកម្ពុជាអូស្ត្រាលិចក្រ័ទ័ង ។

សិក្សារពាធិវង្ស និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអួរធំ ៗ *ឃុំម៉ាតច្រាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃទុប ។

សាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្បារអំពៅ អនុវិទ្យាល័យច្បារអំពៅ អនុវិទ្យាល័យពាងចក្រ នំងសាលាបឋម

*ឃុំព្រៃថ្នុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃថ្នុង សាលាបឋមសិក្សារោងចក្រ សាលាមឋមសិក្សាទារថ្មី

*ឃុំស្ទឹងរំភវ់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលពន្លៃ សាលាបឋបសិក្សាស្ទឹងកែវ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យស្ទឹងកែវ ។ *ឃុំព្រែវគ្នាត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងវរជា អនុវិទ្យាល័យត្រពាំងវពៅ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា វ័ព្រកត្នោតវិទ្យាល័យហ៊ុន សែនព្រែកត្នោត និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាចង្ហោន ។

• ស្រុកទឹកឈូ

ទ្យាល័យសុវណ្ណគីរីរស្ម័ ។

*ឃុំត្រាាំងទី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុនសែនអង្គគយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសុវណ្ណតំរីរស្មី និងអនុវិ

*ឃុំត្រជាំងឆ្លាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងស្ដៅ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុនសែនកោះស្លា អនុវិទ្យា ល័យហ៊ុនសែនកោះស្លា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាមហាព្រហ្ម វិទុរាល័យប៊ុនព័នីហ៊ុនសែនគោះស្លា សា លាបឋមសិក្សាប៊ុនរ៉ានីហ៊ុនសែនរកាះស្លា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាប៊ុនរ៉ានីហ៊ុនសែនក្បាលដំរី សាលា បឋមសិក្សាស្រែព្រ័ង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃពាយ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែអង្គ្រង ។

*ឃុំឆាភែន មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្នំព្រាល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រតាំងរុន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រ ពាំងបំ អនុវិទ្យាល័យត្រពាំងបី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអណ្តែងស្វាង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ័យភា ស្វាយ សាលាមឋមសិក្សាវាលក្រសាំង សាលាមឋមសិក្សាជ័យសេនា និងសាលាមឋមសិក្សា វត្តទឹកថ្កា ។

*ឃុំ៖៖ខោះអតិនខ្មនេំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់ក្មេងលេង

*ឃុំឃ្ប័ក មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុនសែនអង្គល្បើក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងថ្ម សាលាបឋម សិក្សាត្រពាំងគុយ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យអង្គល្បើក ។

- ស្រុកឈូត
- ស្រុកជុំគិរី សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិភក្នុងស្រក និងការិយាល័យអម៉រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាអ្រក ។
- ស្រុកដងទង់ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាស្រុក ៗ

០០-ខេត្តកំពត មាន៖

*ឃុំបន្ទាយមាសខាងកើតមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គជ្រៃ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រពាំងពោន សាលាបឋម ជំព័រជី កតា

សិក្សាព្រៃលើ សាណាបឋមសិក្សាករន្សាមអក និងវិទ្យាល័យកន្សោមអក ។

*ឃុំទគ្គាយទាសខាងលិច មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាលំទំឲ្យង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទង់លាង សាលាបឋម

*ឃុំព្រៃនន្ល មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃទន្លេ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរោងចំន សាលាបឋបសិក្សា បន្ទាយមាស និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យបន្ទាយមាស ។

*ឃុំឆ្នោតចុងស្រង់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្នោក សាលាបឋបសិក្សាក្រាំងទឹក សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ខ្នាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃតាសក់ នំងអនុវិទ្យាល័យព្រៃតាសក់ ។

• ស្រុកបន្ទាយមាស

*ឃុំដំណាក់កន្ធតខាងត្បូង អានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាវត្តជ័យខ្ពស់ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាមុន័ភ្នំរាប ។

*ឃុំច្រាសា៖ឆ្នំខ្យុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្នំខ្យុង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យភ្នំខ្យុង។

*ឃុំភ្នំប្រាសាទ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកែវមនីប្រាសាទ ។

ដូនបុណ្យ។

ល័យភ្នំក្លាប ។ *ឃុំស្វាយនងខាងត្បូង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយទង អនុវិទ្យាល័យស្វាយទង នំឯសាលាបឋមសិក្សា

*ឃុំស្វាយទងខាងជើង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដំបងដែក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ក្រញុង នំងអនុវិទ្យា

សិក្សាព្រៃទប់ សាលាចឋមសិក្សាវត្តអូរ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យអង្គជុំត្រពាំងឈ្វក ។ *ឃុំព្រៃក្រតែ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដើមស្នាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតន់ហន់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា វំព្រកក្រឹស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសាលាដំណាក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះក្នោត នំងអនុវិទ្យាល័យ រដឹមសាយ ។

បើកនិង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយផ្អែម ។ *ឃុំបឹងឆាលាខាងជើងមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះទ្រមួង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គកកោះ សាលាបឋម

សិក្សាអន្លងថ្ងាន់ និងសាណបឋមសិក្សាភ្នំរាប ។ *ឃុំមឹងនាធាខាងត្បូង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិរជ្រស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្នបើក អនុវិទុក្រល័យថ្ម

*ឃុំឬស្ស័ស្រុកខាងកើត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឫស្ស៊ីស្រក អនុវិទ្យាល័យឫស្ស៊ីស្រុក សាលាបឋម

• ស្រុកកំពង់ត្រាច

*ឃុំត្រពាំងព្រឹង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដុបស្ររឡា ។

ពេះ ។

*ឃុំតំរាងត្រែង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាមាត់ពាម សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបឹងព្រះ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យរឹង

- *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំសំចូរចាស ៗ
- ស្រុកមុខកំពូល

ស្រុកខ្សាច់កណ្ដាល

*ឃុំស្វាឃអំពាវ មានសាលារៀនទាំងអស់ *លើកលែងតែ* សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ប្រាសាទ។

ជំព័រឪ កថ

*សាលារៀនទាំឯអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំសំបូរឃុំចាវ៉ុង ឃុំវតាះកែវ ឃុំព្រែកម្មស្សី ឃុំព្រែកក្មេងឃុំព្រែករៃ និងឃុំទូមិឌំ ១

• ស្រុកហ្វាឯម

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំច្រសាទ ៗ

*សាលា រៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុងឃុំរការ៍ន្ល័ង ឃុំជីឃធំ នឹងឃុំចាត់ដាវ់ ៗ

• ស្រុកសួាង៍ *ឃុំព្រៃអំរំវិល មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់តាសេក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លងតារសកក្រោម នំង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុន សែនកូនជ្រៃ ។

*ឆុំកំពង់កុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាល្វាទោង ។ *ឃុំឈើខ្មៅ មានសាលារៀនទាំងអស់*លើកលែងតែ* អនុវិទុក្រល័យឈើខ្មៅ និងសាលាបឋម សិក្សាឈើខ្មៅ ។

- *ឃុំសំជៅពួន មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកសូវ្រ ។
- *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំត្រែភជ្រៃ ឃុំឆើកដែក ៗ
- ស្រុកភោះជំ

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតភ្នុង ឃុំភ្លួទសំណរឃុំសណ្តារ និងឃុំខ្លួចអាតាវ ៗ *ឃុំព្រែកដាច់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះកន្ទាយ ។

ស្រុកលើកដែក

០០-ខេត្តកាណ្ដាល មាន៖

*ឃុំត្រពាំងសាររាខាងកើត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាលៀប ។

ពញាអង្គរ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្ត័ចាស់ ។ *ឃុំវត្តអង្គខាងត្បូង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គជាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃស្វាយ សាលាបឋម សិក្សាកោះវាំង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យកោះវាំង ៗ

សិក្សាពងទឹក សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលស្រម៉រ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យជ្រងស្រទេក ៗ *ឃុំផ្ទៃអង្គខាងជើង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃរោង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាពញាអង្គរ អនុវិទ្យាល័យ

*ឃុំស្តេចតង់ខាងជើង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជ្រងស្រទេ្យា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភ្នំល្អ សាលាបឋម

*ឃុំស្តេចតង់ខាងត្បូង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសង្គ្រោះជាតិ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យសង្គ្រោះជាតិ។

សំក្សាព្រៃបន្ទាំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិពោធិ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យភូមិពោធិ ។

ជំព័រជី ០៩

- *ឃុំកំពង់ច្រាសាទ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ប្រាសាទ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទឹកវិល ៗ ស្រុកកំពង់ត្របែក
- *ឃុំអ្នកលៀង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអាំងកុក ។ • ស្រុកនាមជរ *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំត្រាំងឆាយ៉ង ឃុំកោះសំរាៅ ឃុំកោះកោរ ឃុំឬស្ស៊ីស្រុក និងឃុំអង្គរអង្ក ៗ
- ស្រុកពាមរក៍ *ឃុំបន្លឺចប្រាសា៖ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដុតដា ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំពាមចន្ទារ ឃុំជាងដែត និងឃុំចាច ៗ

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំមេសប្រចាន់ ៗ *ឃុំព្រៃរភ្នាំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្ហាសដី ។

- *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុងឃុំបន្ទាយចក្រី ឃុំព្រះស្តុច នឹងឃុំពុធរ ៗ
- ស្រុកព្រះស្ដេច
- nm-ខេត្តព្រៃវែន័ មាន៖

• ស្រុកពារាំង

- *សង្កាត់ផ្នែតតារសភ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែករាំង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យព្រែករាំង ។ *សង្កាត់កោះដាច់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារនះ។
- ខ័ណ្ឌបុស្សីតែវ

*សង្កាត់ទូរបស្នា មានសាលាបឋមសំក្យាភ្នៀតសិម្ភល៍ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលស្នោ នំឯអនុវិទ្យា ល័យទុលសោ ។

ទ័ណ្តពោធិសែនជ័យ

*សង្កាត់សំរោង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលសាគរ ។

- ទ័ណ្ឌសែនសុខ
- ១៤- រាជនានីភ្នំពេញ មាន៖
- *ឃុំគតិវ៉េ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះតាដោ ។
- *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្តិតក្នុង ឃុំតំពង់អួស នឹងឃុំកោះចិន ៗ *ឃុំកំរាង់លួង មានសាលារៀនទាំងអស់ *លើកលែងតែ* សាលាបឋមសិក្សាបច្ចេភវិជ្ជាសរម្ភចងី ។ • ស្រុកកៀនស្វាយ
- *ឃុំស៊័ធ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ល្អា ។ • ស្រុកពញាត្

ជំព័រដី ៤០

សែន ។

សាមត្តី៣ាស្រែន ។ *ឈុំរង្គរស មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំបូរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសូរ និងសាលារេថមសិក្សាទួលគា -

់«ចូរចូល មានសាលារាមសាក្សាឲ្យសូទ្ធារ ។ *៥ច្រែស មានសាលារាវវមសិក្សាព្រៃសង្គម សាលារេវរមសិក្សាព្រហារ និងសាលារាវរមសិក្សា

*ឃុំព្រៃឃ្នេស មានសាលាចឋមសិក្សាឫស្សីទ្វារ ។

សិក្សាវិព្រមូល ។

ក្រុករទសរជ ៖ឃុំព្រៃទតឹង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គក្លោត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាឧត្តមទួលខ្ពស់ និងសាលាបឋម

• ស្រុកមេសាង

*ឃុំតីភថ្លាំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃគ្រាវ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបួតតងថ្មី ។ *ឃុំឆានឆង់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រាំងចំបក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាពាន គេង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃនគរក្នុង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាសិរីឧត្តម និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យសំរីឧត្តម ។ *ឃុំច្នៃគូមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រចាប និងសាសាបឋមសិក្សាបាក់តាង ។ ៖ឃុំវិញនៈមានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាវត្ថុថ្មី ។

• ស្រុកស្វាយអន្ធរ

អណ្ឌូធំ សំហើសរាណបឋមសិក្សាត្រៃវាំងដ្កាន់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាវ៉ៃប្រជាព្រំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា ទូលក្នោត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកថ្ងាន់ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យតោកថ្នាន់ ។ *ឃុំឆោតតង់តើត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឧត្តមព្រឹក្សា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាធម្មនិមិត្ត សាលាបឋម សិក្សាវ៉ៃជ្រម្នាក់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគោកក្រសាំង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យគោកគង់កើត ។

ក្រមុកកេស្លាប *ធំប្រាល <u>សាលាបឋមសិក្សារ៣គឺព្រឹក្សា</u> មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រាពាំងទឹម សាលាបឋមសិក្សា អណ្ដូង សាលាសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រឆាំងថ្លាន់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃឆាព្រំ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា

• ស្រុកកញ្ចៀច

*ហាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំព្រែកផ្លែ ឃុំព្រែកឆ្នេះ ឃុំពោតំជ្រេង នឹងកូរីយោល័យ អយ៉ ឃុវជន និងកីឡា ស្រុក ១ *ឃុំតំពង់ឬស្សឹ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សា ជ្រៃគ្រហ៊ីម ។

• ស្រុកពោជិញ្ជីដ

*ឃុំផ្ទៃ មានសាលាបឋមស៌ភ្នាកោងស្រែ ។ *ឃុំថ្លៃឃ្មុំ មានសាលាបឋបសិក្សាឡាំឡូង ។ *ឃុំឆ្នាំទ័១មានសាលាបឋបសិក្សាបន្លិចស្វាយ និងសាលាបឋបសិក្សាទួលអង្គុញ ។ *ឃុំព្រែតម្ត្រាន មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកព្នៅ ។

ស្រុកស៊ីជរកណ្តាល
 *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិកក្នុង ឃុំឆ្នាំទី២ ១

*ឃុំព្រៃស្រឡឹត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាតភក្ខឲ ។ *ឃុំភារាំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទន្លេជ្រៃ ។

ជំព័រជី ៤០

*ឃុំទនោរឡូ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាមនោរម្យ។

- ស្រុកស្វាយទាប
- សែនទេពច័តា ។
- *ឃុំរំច្រស មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលអំពិល ។ *ឃុំសំរោង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរោងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយថ្លឹង និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យជន
- *ឃុំចន្ត្រា មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាចន្ត្រា និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យចន្ត្រា ។
- *ឃុំមេសផ្ទុក មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាបារាយណ៍ ។
- សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធកោះឫស្សឺ ។
- ។ ៥ ៖ឃុំទូលស្តិ៍ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលស្ក័ អនុវិទ្យាល័យទូលស្តិ៍ សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធដូនទៃ និង សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធដូនថៃ និង
- ស្រុកចន្ទ្រា
- *សង្កាត់ថ្ងាទី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រសប់លាក់ ។
- *សង្កាត់ច្រករម្មស មានសាណបឋមសិក្សាច្រកម្ទេស និឯសាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្លក ។
- *ប្រុង។កត* *សង្កាត់ច្រាសាត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាប្រាសាទ អនុវិទ្យាល័យប្រាសាទ និងសាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធ ប្រាសាទ ។
- ក្រុងបាវិត

ា៤-ទេត្តស្វាយរៀន៍ មាន៖

*ឃុំឆាឃ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាទ័ពស្ដេច ។

- សិក្សាត្រពាំងសិភា ។
- *ៈឈុល្កាល់ មានសាលាបបមសក្សាកកោះជ្រូ ។ *ឃុំស្តៅភាង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រកស្វាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទូលរការ និឯសាលាបឋម
- *ឃុំស្ទឹ(ភ) មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភកោះរុជំ ។
- *ឃុំស្តិ៍(ខ) មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃប្រង់ និងសាលាបឋមស្មិក្សាធ្លូក ។
- ស្រុកបាភ្នំ
- *ឃុំក្រញូង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាចំការចេក ។
- ក្លិង ។
- *ឃុំឆ្មោងខាងត្បូង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃគឺ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាគំនុំ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃ
- *ឃុំជាច មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សារពាន និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សារភាះខ្លាយ ។
- *ឃុំត្រឆៅ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំរាង់មានជ័យ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអញ្ចាញ ។
- ស្រុកកំចាយមារ
- *ឃុំស្វាឃជ្រ៉ុ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសាវ៉ាំង ។

96

ខំព័រខ្មី ៤៤

- *ឃុំក្រោលគោ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាវាលខ្ដាច ។
- *ឃុំស្វាឃយា មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្តីស្លា និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្វាយជុំជៅ ។

*ឃុំគត៏រសាម មានសាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធកំពោតទូក និងសាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធបាត់ថង់ ។

សាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងបន្ទាយ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យត្រពាំងបន្ទាយ ។

*ឃុំតត៍វ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាគគីរនិងអនុវិទ្យាល័យគគីរ។

*ឃុំអណ្តូងត្រមែត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំរ៉ែង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអណ្តូងត្របែក សាលាបឋម សិក្សាជីកដី សាលាបឋមសិក្សាច្រករំដួលសាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធដូនត្វាន និងអនុវិទុក្រល័យជីកដី ។ *ឃុំត្រឆ់ មានសាលាបឋមសំក្សាតាសួស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាវត្តត្រស់ សាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធម្រាក់ទាប

*ឃុំត្រឆាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រសាំង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាទួលតារាម និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យព្រៃ

*ឃុំដុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ថ្នា សាលាបឋមសិក្សាវត្តដួង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាដួង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គ អនុវិទ្យាល័យដ្លង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាពោន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជាធាច

*ឃុំចុសចន មានសាណាបឋមសិក្សាបុសមនលើ សាណាបឋមសិក្សាបុសមន អនុវិទ្យាល័យសៅ

*ឃុំព់ទ្នង់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សវត្តធ្នង់ អនុវិទ្យាល័យថ្នាធ្នង់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្នាច្នង់ សាលា

*ឃុំឆ្នោត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុនសែនគ្នោត អនុវិទ្យាល័យគ្នោត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃរប័ស

*ឃុំឆំឡំ នសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃម្នាស់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រៃភ្នៀត សាលាបឋមសិក្សាតាប៉ោ

មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរោង នំងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធក្រសាំងជ្រំ ។

បឋមសិក្សាសេរីវង្ស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកពក និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា២ធ្នូ ៗ

ស្រុកវមាសហែក

បិទមាស ។

• ស្រុករំដួល

ស្រុកកំពង់ពាទិ៍

• ស្រុកស្វាយជ្រុំ

*ឃុំគ្រស

និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភូមិថ្មី ។

និងសាលាឧបសម្ព័ន្ធពោធ៌មួម ។

និងអនុវិទុកល័យ ៧មករា ។

យ៉ាតបុសមន និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រម៉ ។

*ឃុំចន្ទាឃក្រាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពោធិក្រច ។

- *ឃុំស្វាយធំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាដក់ពរ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំពេងរពជ្រ ។

*ឃុំថ្មី មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះត្រាច និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាជប់ព្រឹង ។

ឧំព័រនី ៤៣

- ស្រុកទ្រាំង
- *សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្តិតក្នុង យ៉ុត៌រារាប់ ឃុំសោម ឃុំភាអូ ឃុំភ័រែង ឃុំគោកព្រេច ឃុំអង្គច្រាសាន នឹងឃុំរាមអណ្តើក ១

- ស្រុកតិរីវង់
- ស្រុកអង្គរបុរី សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- *ស្រុកកោះអណ្តែត* សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាស្រុក ។

- ស្រុកបូរីជលសារ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- សាលាបឋមសិក្សាចំការខ្ញុ័ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាចំរាំង ។ ០៦-ខេត្តតាកែវ មាន៖

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំអង្គរ៍ភរ ឃុំខ្វាវ ឃុំរនាម ឃុំត្លក នឹងឃុំសំបូរ ៗ

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំអូរសារាយ នឹងឃុំត្រពាំងត្រញូង ៗ

*ឃុំត្រាំកត់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងចក ៗ

- *ឃុំទំនប់រលក មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកែវផុស អនុវិទ្យាល័យកែវផុស សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្មវៀង
- ស្រុកស្ទឹងហាវ

ស្រុកត្រាំកក់

- *ឃុំសាមត្ត៍ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកក្រាញ់ និងសាលារេវេមសិក្សាណារុគិបឹងរាំង ។
- *យ៉ឺទឹភថ្នាំ មានសាលាបឋមសិភរាព្រែកទាល់ ។
- *ឃុំទឹកច្ចក់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ស្មាច់គូច ៗ
- ព្រែកស្វាយ អនុវិទ្យាល័យដូងប្រេងតានៃ និងសាលាមឋមសិក្សាហ៊ុន នាងដំឡូងមី ។
- *ឃុំសំរ៉ុំរ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរថ្មខ៣ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរត្រពាក់ចិត្ត ។ *ឃុំជើងគោ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាមនោរម្យ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាអន្លង់ក្រពើ សាលាបឋមសិក្សា
- *ឃុំវាវ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអុង ។
- *ឃុំទូលទទឹង សាលាបឋមសិក្សាជំពូខ្មៅ ៗ
- *ឃុំព្រៃនប់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សប្រទ្យាយ ៧៥ ។
- ស្រុកព្រៃនប់
- *សង្កាត់អាះរ៉ុង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកស្វាយ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះតួច សាលាបឋម សិក្សារដ៍មថ្កូវ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះរុងសន្ល៍ម និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសុខសាន្ត ៗ
- ក្រងព្រះសីហនុ
- ស្រុកភំពដ៍់សិលា សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាស្រុក ។

```
សិក្សាតាករកាះ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះកែវ ។
```

*ឃុំស្វាយជ្រំ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាក្រពើពល សាលាបឋមសិក្សាថ្នល់តាសែង សាលាបឋម

ជំព័រដី ៤៤

*ឃុំជឹងត្រាវ់ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអូរលយ ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំច្រស្ទឹប ៗ *ឃុំ៖តំហូត មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែករាំង និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកសាលា ។

*ឃុំគោភចន្ទាយ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភេ និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភងមាស ។

• ស្រុករលាប្អៀរ

*ឃុំពោធិ៍មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់បាចិន និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរោង ។

*ឃុំតំរាង់ចៅ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកោះភ្នែក អនុវិទ្យាល័យកោះភ្នែក និងសាលាបឋមសិក្សា ដនវៀត ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំផ្លូវនូត ឃុំប្រឡាឃមាស ឃុំច្រណូក និងឃុំសំរោងសែន ៗ

• ស្រុកកំពង់លែង

*ឃុំសែរ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភប់សេះ ។

*ឃុំឈូកឆ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាស្រែសារ ។

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំអំពីឆេទ័ំភ ៗ *ឃុំតំពង់ត្រឡាច មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសំរិទ្ធជ័យ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាព្រែកគន្លង និងសាលាបឋម សិក្សាកំពង់ក្លារ ៗ

ស្រុកកំពង់ត្រូឡាច

*សង្កាត់ផ្សាឆ្នាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាភោះក្របី ។

- ក្រងកំពង់ឆ្នាំង
- ស្រុកជលគីរី សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។
- ស្រុកសាមគ្គីមានជ័យ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក។
- ស្រុកទឹកផុល សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុកនិងការិយាល័យអប់រំយុវជននិងកីឡាស្រុក ។

តៅ-ខេត្តកំពន់ំឆ្នាំដ៍ មាន៖

 ស្រុកវ៉ៃពួកបុរាស សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ត័តក្នុង ឃុំតំរាង់រាថ ១ *ឃុំចារ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាអង្គស្វាយចេក ។

មានសាលាចឋមសិក្សាអង្គសីមា និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យអង្គសីមា ។ *ឃំសំរោង *ឃុំរំញ៉ាំងញ៉ាំង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាធម្មមង្គល ។

សិក្សាសេរីដំណាក់ ។ *ឃុំត្រពាំងធំខាងត្បូង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាត្រពាំងខ្ចុំ ។

*ឃុំត្រាំងធំខាងជើង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាពោធិរុន សាលាបឋមសិក្សាពោធិដុះ និងសាលាបឋម

២ការា៥. អគ្គនាយក នៃនាយកដ្ឋានរដ្ឋបាល និងហិរញ្ញវត្ថុ អគ្គនាយកដ្ឋានអប់រំ ប្រធាននាយកដ្ឋានរដ្ឋបាល នាយកដ្ឋានបុគ្គលិក នាយកដ្ឋានហិរញ្ញវត្ថុ នាយកដ្ឋាន់បណ្តុះបណ្តាលនិងវិក្រឹតការ នាយកដ្ឋានផែនការ មន្ទីរអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡារាជធានី ខេត្ត ៣ក់ព័ន្ធមានភារកិច្ចអនុវត្តប្រកាសនេះចាប់ពីថ្ងៃចុះហត្ថលេខា កទៅ ៗ 2023 ខែតលា ឆ្នាំ២០១៤ 👾 👾 រាជភា * ចម្លងជូន -ទីស្តីការគណៈរដ្ឋបន្ត្រី (mm Sousan Star -ក្រសូងមហាផ្ទៃ មស្និត សទ់ តុន សារុទ -ក្រសួងសេដ្ឋកិច្ច និងហ័រញ្ញវក្ក ្យកសួងមុខងារសាធារណៈ -សាលារាជធានី ខេត្តសាមី < ដើម្បីជ្រាបជាព័ត៌មាន · -អង្គភាពពាក់ព័ន្ធ -មន្ទីរអំបរំ យុវជន និងកីឡារាជធានី ខេត្ត -ដូចប្រការ ៥ <u>់ ដើម្បីអនុវត្ត</u> ។ ៈកាលប្បវត្តិ -ឯកសារ : នាយកដ្ឋានបុគ្គលិក : ខំព័រនី ៤៩

ម្រកការ៤. បទបញ្ញក្តិទាំងឡាយដែលផ្ទុយនឹងខ្លឹមសារក្នុងប្រកាសនេះត្រូវចាត់ទុកជានិរាករណ៍ ។

- ស្រុកដំណាក់ចង្អើរ សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុងស្រុក និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡា ស្រក។
- ក្រុងកែប សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ស្ថិតក្នុងក្រុង និងការិយាល័យអប់រំ យុវជននិងកីឡាក្រុង និងមន្ទីរអប់រំ យុវជន និងកីឡាខេត្ត ។

nd-ទេត្តកែប មាន៖

*សាលារៀនទាំងអស់ ស្ថិតក្នុង ឃុំភំពង់ព្រះតតី ឃុំអញ្ចាងរូង ឃុំប្រពេធចង្វារ និងឃុំត្រពាំងចាន់ ៗ *ឃុំខុនរឹង មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់អូវ។ *ជំនួតទ្រ មានសាលាបឋមសិក្សាសេះស្លាប់ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាយុគន្ធរ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាកំពង់ ព្រះ សាលាបឋមសិក្សាឆ្លកទ្រ និងអនុវិទ្យាល័យឆ្នកទ្រ។

ស្រុកបរិបូរណ៍